Town Board Monthly Meeting

December 3, 2020 7:30 p.m.
107 Glenclyffe Drive, Garrison, New York

SALUTE TO THE FLAG
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Monthly Town Board Meeting — November 5, 2020

Public Hearing — CVPD & CVWD Budget — November 4, 2020
Public Hearing — General Budget — November 4, 2020
Weekly Town Board Meeting — November 18, 2020

COMMITTEE REPORTS

1) Conservation Board 2) Recreation 3) The Philipstown Hub 4) Planning Board
5) Zoning  6) Highway 7) Building & Land Acquisition  8) Cemetery Committee
9) Putnam County Legislator

AGENDA

1. Resolution accepting the resignation of Deputy Town Clerk Theresa Crawley
effective December 31, 2020.

2. Resolution awarding the 2021 Highway Material Bids.

3. Resolution authorizing the return of any remaining Cash Performance Bond
for Vamco Realty of Peekskill.

4. Resolution approving the following 1 change order for the Town Hall
Renovation Project in the amount of $18,475.00:
1) Copper Gutters & Leaders (PVS Construction)

5. Resolution approving the following 1 change order for the Town Hall
Renovation Project in the amount of $10,267.00:
1) Elevator Battery Backup (PVS Construction)

6. Resolution approving the following 1 change order for the Town Hall
Renovation Project in the amount of $4,610.00:
1} Concrete Entry Sidewalk



7. Resolution authorizing Supervisor Shea to sign the filming permit for North
Six (GAP Teen Spring 2021 project), event to take place December 2-3, 2020 at
40 High Ridge Road, Garrison. (NUNC PRO TUNC)

8. Resolution authorizing Supervisor Shea to sign the filming permit for
Integrated Film Industries (Teen Gap 2 project), event to take place December
4, 2020 at 40 High Ridge Road, Garrison. (NUNC PRO TUNC)

9. Resolution extending the moratorium on the submission and processing of
applications for Land Use Approvals for new land use development on
properties located on Upland Drive, Ridge Road and Cliffside Court within the
Town of Philipstown for a period of six (6) months to June 4, 2021.

10.Resolution accepting the proposal from Marc’s Landscaping & Outdoor
Living, LLC for 2020-2021 snow shoveling and ice melt application as
presented.

11.Resolution authorizing Robert Cinque to sign the proposed Consent Order and
Judgement re: Garewal vs. Town of Philipstown.

12.Resolution authorizing Town Clerk to advertise for the position of Clerk to
Special Boards (ZBA, PB & CB) to begin January 1, 2021.

13.Brief presentation by Cathleen Donovan regarding WIC programs.

14. Brief presentation on the Village of Cold Spring water supply by Michelle
Smith & Chasen representative(s).

15.Submission and brief presentation of the draft of the Comprehensive Plan
Update by Nat Prentice.

16. Schedule Workshops/Meetings.
¢« Workshop — December 9, 2020 — Trails committee to discuss
sidewalk to Boscobel, update from Jeff Domanski
e Year End — December 17, 2020

¢ Monthly Town Board Meeting — January 7, 2020
¢ Re-Organization — January 7, 2020 @ 7:00 pm

17.Code Enforcement Monthly Report

18.Any other business that may come before the Town Board.



AUDIENCE
VACANCIES - Board of Assessment Review (1)

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS

General Highway CVPD CcvwD

ADJOURNMENT



Monthly Town Board Meeting
November 5, 2020

The Town Board held their Monthly Meeting on the above date at 7:30 p.m., at the
Recreation Center, 107 Glenclyffe Drive, Garrison, NY 10524.

PRESENT: Richard Shea Supervisor
John Van Tassel Councilman
Michael Leonard Councilman
Robert Flaherty Councilman
Judith Farrell Councilwoman

Supervisor Shea opened the meeting with the Salute to the Flag.
PHILIPSTOWN DEPOT THEATRE SPECIAL MEETING

Resolution approving the nomination of Caitlin Chadwick as a member to the Board
of Director.

This item was put aside as Claudio Marzollo was not in attendance.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Minutes of the Monthly Town Board meeting of October 1, 2020.

Councilman Leonard made a motion, seconded by Councilman Van Tassel, that the
Minutes of the Monthly Town Board meeting are hereby approved as presented.

Minutes of the Special Town Board meeting of October 20, 2020.

Councilwoman Farrell made a motion, seconded by Councilman Flaherty, that the
Minutes of the Special Town Board meeting are hereby approved as presented.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

CONSERVATION BOARD - Councilman Leonard reported that they met on October
13, 2020 with the following items on the agenda:

176 Moog Rd. — site plan for septic field

Riverview Rte. 9 — mitigation plans, culvert

Hudson River Lane — septic system on Hudson River

720 Rte. 301 — erect new structure

342 Avery Rd. — pool and decking

Discussion on Desmond Fish Library about a discovery path.

Roberto Muller and Max Garfinkle have been working for a number of months
on an inventory for tracking the wetlands.

¢ Discussion on Stormwater issues.



Monthly Town Board Meeting
November 5, 2020

The next meeting is scheduled for November 10, 2020.

RECREATION - Councilwoman Farrell reported that the commission met on October
27, 2020 with the following items discussed:
e A drive-in movie at the Rec center for Halloween—Hocus Pocus-was a
success.
e A “Trunk or Treat” party which was also successful.
Programming continues virtually and in person. Qutdoor programs are at a
limited capacity due to the COVID.
o The commission is working on updating their by-laws, have elected a new
Chairman, Mr. Bill Mazzucca, and is continuing to work on future virtual
programs and outdoor programs.

PHILIPSTOWN HUB - Councilwoman Farrell reported they had a “Hub hike" for the
first time on October 16, 2020 led by Karen Kapur, Trail Master. It was a great
success. They are continuing to host community conversation and are urging anyone
needing help to reach out to them at “Philipstownhub.org” or by calling 845-260-1001.

PLANNING BOARD - Councilman Flaherty reported that they met on October 15,
2020 with following items on the agenda:

Chundu/Moth — return of escrow

Angel Hill Rd., Garrison — single family residence

3315 Rte. 9, Cold Spring — converting 2" floor from storage to one bedroom
Public Hearing continuation — CRS International

Magazzino ltalian Art Foundation — site plan/special use permit

176 Moog Rd. — addition of 3-season room, deck extension and formal
courtyard.

¢ 19 Fieldstone Ridge, Cold Spring — subdivision

e 699 Old Albany Post Rd., Garrison — barn-like addition

e 3622 Rte. 9 LLC - site plan approval

The next meeting is scheduled for November 15, 2020. Via Zoom.

ZONING BOARD - Councilman Van Tassel reported that they met on October 19,
2020 with the following items on the agenda:

¢ Public Hearing — South Mountain Spur — lot line adjustment
The next meeting is scheduled via Zoom on November 9, 2020.

HIGHWAY — Councilman Van Tassel read the report submitted by Carl Frisenda,
Highway Superintendent which is on file in the Town Clerks Office.



Monthly Town Board Meeting
November &, 2020

BUILDING & LAND ACQUISITION — Supervisor Shea reported that the Town is
entertaining a new highway garage and that the Town Hall project is back on track.
He said the it may be ready to move at the first of the year.

CEMETERY COMMITTEE - Councilman Leonard reported that they met on October
15, 2020. The committee has been doing site visits. The work has moved back o the
Mountain Ave cemetery after work was done at North Highlands. The stone mason
went around with committee members. There is a lot of underground work which is
not noticeable until they started working on the stones. The committee discovered a
burial site which had not been marked and it is believed that the families could not
afford to place a stone. So, they are considering putting up some kind of marker as a
dedication to them. In the near future they will make some determinations as to where
they will go next. Next year funding — landscaper, maintenance — depends on what
needs to be done as far [andscaping. They will be advertising for volunteers.

PC LEGISLATOR - Legislator Montgomery came by to just say Hi. She reported that
the County did pass their budget. She was the lone legislator who did not vote to pass
the budget as she did not feel that raises where appropriate at this time. She is still
fighting hard for the Sheriff's budget. If you have any questions you can contact her
at 845-808-1020



Monthly Town Board Meeting
November 5, 2020

TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
MONTHLY REPORT OF TOWN SUPERVISOR
MONIES RECEIVED AS OF NOVMBER 5, 2020

GENERAL & PART-TOWN FUNDS

Bldg. Fees 9/20
Justice Fees 9/20

NYS Grant Justice Fees

Rec Fees 9/20

TC Fees 920

TC Fees 9/20

Bldg. Fees 10/20

Expressway Auto Scrap Metal
PC Cemetery

Justice Fees10/20

Justice Bail

HIGHWAY

PC Gas

CONTINENTAL VILLAGE WATER DISTRICT

Water Collection

CONTINENTAL VILLAGE PARK DISTRICT

$22,178.64
7,680.00

1,000.00
53,000.00
472.57
350.50
101,508.47
11.20
4,806.32
4,787.00

1,265.11

112,000.00



Monthly Town Board Meeting
November 5, 2020

AGENDA

1. Resolution approving the return of escrow for Harini Chundu/Andrew Moth,
120 Skyline Drive, TM#16.-1-23.13.

RESOLUTION #-2020
The following Resolution was presented by Counciiman Flaherty, seconded by
Councilman Van Tassel and unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the return of Escrow for Harini
Chundu/Andrew Moth, 120 Skyline Drive, TM#16.-1-23.13.

2. Resolution approving the Garrison Volunteer Ambulance Corps 2018
Sponsor Approval Form for the Length of Service Award Program.

RESOLUTION #-2020
The following Resolution was presented by Councilman Van Tassel seconded by
Councilman Flaherty and unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the Garrison Volunteer
Ambulance Corps 2018 Sponsor Approval Form for the Length of Service Award
Program.

3. Resolution accepting the revised proposal from E&FS LLC for Pneumatic
Fluids & Compressed Air System in the amount of $6,500.00 for the new
Highway Garage and authorizing Supervisor Shea to sign said proposal
documents.

RESOLUTION #-2020
The following Resolution was presented by Councilwoman Farrell, seconded by
Councilman Flaherty and unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby accepting the revised proposal from E&FS
LLC for Pneumatic Fluids & Compressed Air System in the amount of $6,500.00 for
the new Highway Garage and authorizing Supervisor Shea to sign said proposal
documents,

4. Resolution authorizing Town Clerk to advertise for members for the
Cemetery Committee.

RESOLUTION #-2020
The following Resolution was presented by Councilman Van Tassel, seconded by
Councilwoman Farrell and unanimously carried;



Monthly Town Board Meeting
November 5, 2020

RESOLVED, that the Town Board authorizes Town Clerk Percacciolo to advertise for
members for the Cemetery Committee

5. Resolution authorizing Supervisor Shea to sign the Filming Permit for John
Perez Locations, Inc. (Spiriva Project), event to take place 10/7/2020-
10/7/2020 at Indian Brook Falls, Indian Brook Falls Trail & Little Stony Point
Beach. (Nunc Pro Tunc)

RESOLUTION #-2020
The following Resolution was presented by Councilman Van Tassel, seconded by
Councilwoman Farrell and unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby authorizes Supervisor Shea to sign the
Filming Permit for the John Perez Locations, Inc. {Spiriva Project), event to take place
10/7/2020-10/8/2020 at Indian Brook Falls, Indian Brook Falls Trail & Little Stony Point
Beach. (Nunc Pro Tunc)

6. Resolution authorizes Supervisor Shea to sign the Filming Permit for John
Perez locations, Inc. (Artworld Project), event to take place 10/3/2020 at 40
High Ridge Road, Garrison. (Nunc Pro Tunc)

RESOLUTION #-2020
The following Resolution was presented by Counciiman Flaherty, seconded by
Councilman Van Tassel and unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby authorizes Supervisor Shea to sign the
Filming Permit for the John Perez Locations, Inc. (Artworld Project), event to take
place 10/3/2020 at 49 High Ridge Road, Garrison. (Nunc Pro Tunc)

7. Garrison Properties — Hudson Valley Shakespeare — Request for amendment
to Section 175-7TA and Section 175-61A of the Code of the Town of
Philipstown to permit uses not presently permitted in Garrison Golf Club
Planned Development District (RC).

Mr. Chris Davis, a longtime resident and supporter, discussed the plan for the Hudson
Valley's Shakespeare Festival's move to The Garrison’ property. Mr. Davis' goal is to
continue to act as a steward for the property.

Mr. Davis McCallum talked about the history of the Shakespeare Festival in
Philipstown. He then introduced Laney McKinnon who went on to explain the changes
that are being planned and their long-term goals for the property.

P. Daniel Hollis lll, Attorney, discussed the process for submitting the necessary
documenits to further pursue the development.



Monthly Town Board Meeting
November 5, 2020

8. Schedule Workshops/Meetings.
* Monthly Town Board Meeting — December 3, 2020 7:30pm

¢ Workshop — Hudson Valley Community Power CCA: Annual Update from Jeff
Domanski of Hudson Valley Energy — 11/18/2020 7:30pm

¢ Schedule Adoption of 2021 Budget — November 18, 2020

o  Weekly meeting — November 10, 2020 9:00am

9. Code Enforcement Monthly Reports.

Town Clerk Percacciolo read the reports submitted which are on file in the Town
Clerks office.

10. Any other business that may come before the Town Board.

Councilman Flaherty reported that there will be a Bliood Drive at Our Lady of Loretta
on November 11, 2020. Please donate if you can.

AUDIENCE

Greg McGarver, Indian Brook resident, asked about the signage recommendation
packet that they submitted to the Board and how they need to follow up on that.
Supervisor Shea said that they would be able to get to this right after the Budget is
done, he would then be able to follow up. He said that It will be forwarded to the
Highway Superintendent for his review and the Town Attorney.

Nat Prentice said he would like to mention the following:

¢ His support for the Shakespeare Festival project at The Garrison.

e The Cold Spring Chamber of Commerce willingness to get involved with
helping with the internet service. Legislature Montgomery reported that she
and Supervisor Shea has been working with Optimum with regard to fiber
optics, but it is still a long time off for this area.

« Comprehensive Plan Update Committee - They have pretty much finished their
work and are now assessing it. He believes they can deliver a draft by the
December meeting. Supervisor Shea said that December sounds good.

Cristal Ford wanted to express how sad it is that you cannot park at Constitution
Marsh. She is not going to waik on 8D with her children. She feels there has to be
away that community members are not shut out. There should be a village trolley to
bring people back and forth.



Monthly Town Board Meeting
November 5, 2020

Ellen K - asked about having workshops to discuss parking, walking trails, and trollies
for the Indian Brook area. Supervisor Shea said they are open to having a workshop
on this and the residents can contact the office to set one up.

VACANCIES
(1) Board of Assessment Review
APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS

Counciiman Van Tassel made a motion, seconded by Councilman Flaherty and
unanimously carried that the General Vouchers in the amount of $201,714.65 are
hereby approved as set forth in Abstract 10A & 11

Councilman Flaherty made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Farrell and
unanimously carried that the Highway Vouchers in the amount of $665,115.06 are
hereby approved as set forth in Abstract 10A & 11.

Councilman Leonard made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Farrell and
unanimously carried that the CVPD Vouchers in the amount of $1,553.67 are hereby
approved as set forth in Abstract 11

Councilman Leonard made a motion, seconded by Councilman Van Tassel and
unanimously carried that the CVWD Vouchers in the amount of $15,594.95 are hereby
approved as set forth in Abstract 11

There being no further business to discuss, Councilman Van Tassel made a motion,
seconded by Councilwoman Farrell to close the Monthly Meeting at 9:08pm.

Respectfully submitted by,

Theresa Crawley
Deputy Town Clerk



Weekly Town Board Meeting
November 18, 2020

The Town Board of the Town of Philipstown held Weekly Meeting on the above date at
7:30 p.m., at the Recreation Center, 107 Glenclyffe Drive, Garrison, New York.

PRESENT: Richard Shea Supervisor
John Van Tassel Councilman
Robert Flaherty Councilman
Michael Leonard Councilman
Judy Farrell Councilwoman
AGENDA

1. Resolution adopting the Proposed 2021 Budget.

Supervisor Shea explained that the final budget was capped at 1.76%.

RESOLUTION # -2020

The following Resolution was presented by Councilman Van Tassel, seconded by

Councilman Leonard;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby adopts the Philipstown Budget for fiscal year
2021 as presented.

ROLL CALL VOTE

The vote on the foregoing resolution was as follows

Judith Farrell, Councilwoman, voting AYE
John Van Tassel, Councilman, voting AYE
Robert Flaherty, Councilman, voting AYE
Michael Leonard, Councilman, voting AYE
Richard Shea, Supervisor, voting AYE

2. Resolution approving the following 1 change order for the Town Hall
Renovation Project in the amount of $18,475.00:

1. Copper Gutters & Leaders (PVS Construction)
RESOLUTION # -2020

The following Resolution was presented by Councilman Flaherty seconded by
Councilman Leonard and unanimously carried;



Weekly Town Board Meeting
November 18, 2020

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby tables this resolution for further review.

3. Resolution approving the following 1 change order for the Town Hall
Renovation Project in the amount of $10,267.00:

1. Elevator Battery Backup (PVS Construction)

RESOLUTION # -2020

The following Resolution was presented by Councilwoman Farrell seconded by
Councilman Flaherty and unanimously carried,;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby tables this resolution for further review.

4. Resolution approving the following 1 change order for the Town Hall
Renovation Project in the amount of $4,610:

1. Concrete Entry Walkway
RESOLUTION # -2020
The following Resolution was presented by Councilman Flaherty seconded by
Councilwoman Farrell and unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby tables this resolution for further review.

5. Hudson Valley Community Power CCA: Annual Update from Jeff Domanski of
Hudson Valley Energy.

No one in attendance.

Councilwoman Farrell asked the Board what else could/should be done with regard to the
increase of COVID cases. Supervisor Shea said that he wrote letters to both newspapers
asking people to do what is right over the holidays. He also said that Philipstown is doing
better than the rest of the County with the other side at 6% percent.

There being no further business to discuss, Councilman Leonard made a motion,
seconded by Councilwoman Farrell to close the Special Meeting at 7:55 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by,

Theresa Crawley
Deputy Town Clerk



SEaESEs= nn“u"""""n"n“n"’“n"""n"nul"“"n"uun"n“n

6ES'BEE’S

000°9LE
SB86°0CT
09L’9TT

SLE6'06L
0ST'SLL
0L6'Z9
056/T8RZ
nﬂﬁ“pmm.n
9ZS5’6ST
020Z-8T-1T 0Tt L8582

1202 - adLdogvy XYL ig

T =2beg

u.“'u.nnuun"""“"""“ SEER==E """""“""u“'“n"

NOIIVNIWNEIZD AAST QNV SaNNA J0 ZNVHMOS

3ebpna 1zoz - NMOLBLITIHA 20 NMOT

EEESESEg===o

(009 ‘¢00’T) (00T’s50*2) 6ET LEETIT NMOL TYIOL

000’9LE AYIEIT QTIIINIALING T0 1007

(009'82) (OTL'TL) S6E'TET LSIQ WMI¥d FOVITIIA INOD Tgds

{0€0"LST) 06L'ELE UALVM FOVTITA INOD 0ZME

(c0o0’0g) 000’02 YHLYM DNIANVT NOSTMMVD 0TME

SLE'06L SONVTIHDIH HI¥OM STJS

0ST’SLL S# NOSIWYYD %Tas

0L6°29 T# NMOLSATIIIHA €148

056 ‘TeE Z3T# AOVTIIA TYININIINGD TTas

(000 ‘0ss) (0%E €LT) ESF’'0Z9’'¢ TIA BAQISLOO XVMHOIH zogsd

(000 0ST) (000'01¢€) 8ES’6T9 dOVTIIA-INO NID Toodg

(000'5LZ) (020°e2E’T) 0ET'SS%‘p aROd TVIENAS 000Y

HONVTVE SHONIARY NOIIVINJOHAJdY L8Id IVIDHLS - aNng
QEANIIXTND JILVHILSH TZoz

8837 8837

0Z0Z-AON-6T



00216 00Z'TE SAYMHOIN/Lans

ooo‘ee 000'TS TIOD XVL/M¥ETD NMOL
000‘0€ ogo‘sz OTISHL NMOL
oop’0€ 000’62 H0ILBOr NMOL
000°8T 0oo0’8sT NYWIIONOOD
ooc*sT 000°8BT RYWIIDNAOD
000'8T 000°8T RYIFIIDNQOD
000'8BT ooo’sTt NYRIIDNOOD
poo'Lez goo0‘LE HOSIA¥AINS
JUVIVE REVTYS

TZ0Z 0zZoz dIDIII0

(MY NMOL HHI 40 & ETDILNY)
SYADILI0 MMOL QILOFTE JO STTUVIVS 40 TINGIEHDS

l“lﬂ“'“"l“ﬂ““l“"n“"“"““"ﬂ.“"“"H""""ﬂ"""“"““““n““n ““un“"“H““"“"n“"““I“”“"l“""“n““ﬂ“"n“"““

6ES‘BEE’S qasIvVY 39 OL SHXVI TYLOL

E9Z992"0 e6¥¥9z 0 000'9LZ S6%'605°€P0°T TIETINILIOL T TOOT
%6T°T- FPITS9T T 9LETSI T SB6°02T 8995°966 0T L8IQ 4 TIA INOD Tzas
%871 BTFLZE T CBEPPE"T 08L’9TT LEE’0SB ‘98 HELVM 7IIA INOD 0ZMS
300°0- BT9€L9°T ESSEL9"Z SL6'06L TE9'TISB’S6E SANVIHOIH HIMON STJS
BZT €~ §Z9v90°¢ 901000 0ST'SLL 067 9SS LBE S# NOBINAVD %TdS
STL° 0~ SSOEBD"T 66VELY T 0L6°Z9 E¥0‘p9L’ET T# MMOLBAITIHA £T4S
%€E6°0 SBPFZI"C PLEPPT Z 0S6°'TBEZ 86Z°LBY'TET T# EOVTIIA INCGD TTAaS
%P9 9 6E690F € 0¥Z9Z9 "€ 6€9°950“¢€ ¥¥v'ze6 ‘T8 TIA SAISLIOO TVIIANTD
%69°T- 18ev8L-¢ ZBELEL Z 0TT LSB’E SEP'60S'EVOT HAAIMNMOL TYEENID
0Z0Z Woda {000) JLVvY XAFT JO NOILYOTVA LEIQ TVIDHAS - amnad
TONVHD % ¥Hd "IV VL 1Z0Z LNOOWY JI56A8SY
ozoez aasodoyud 1zZozZ 020Z TYNT4

z obeg Jebpng 1goz - RMOLSAITIHG 40 NMOL QZ0Z-AON-6T



ST 000'T 09€’66 08Z'66 £68°66 ELB 69 09E‘ge 0PB°L8 SSET
000‘8gT ooo0‘8T 000’81 6TC‘% 000°8T 0¥8’s 00%-SSET-TO-00V
ooe [1]e}:3 nos 98T noe 00Z-9SET~-T0-00¥W
COT-SSET-TO-00¥
093'¢¢g 099'¢c¢ SLZT'BE 96E’8E 098'€ge 000°€e TOT-SSET-TO0-00V
%T 000'T 006°9% 0Ze'9% 0Z8'9% ZLO'LE 006'S¥H 000°S¥H 00T-SSET-TO-00V
00S‘€Z 00S’ET 005°sZ 086°8T 00G‘€g nos‘ee OPET
00S°TT 00S‘'TT 00S°2T 8BZ‘6 00S'TT 00S‘TT TOT-0%ET-TO-00¥W
000°2T 000°ZT 000’ET 269°¢6 000‘ZT 000°TT 00T-0FET-TO0~-00V
000°s 000°S 000°S 08579 000‘s 0SE‘0T 0EET
000°'s oo0‘s 000’Ss 095‘g 00o0’s 0SE’0T 00¥-0EET-TO~00%
00E-DEET-T0-00W
0OT-0EET-TO-00VW
L99'9% L95°9% L99'9% SLE'W LS99 9% 0EBEY 0CET
0LS'8 0L5'8 0LS’8 SLE'¥ 0LS’8B 059'% TOVP-0ZET~TO0-00VY
L60'8E LB0'8E LEO’BE LBD'8E 08T ‘6E 00F-0ZET-TO-00V
ST oon“‘T 00E“9ET 00£’9¢€T 00L/LET ZET’60T 00E'SET 960'Z€T 02eI
o0zZ'T noz’'T 0oz’'t 278 ooz'T 26 00%-0ZZTI-T0-00¥
002-0ZZT-T10-00V
%2 000t 000°2s oo0“zs oos‘ezs ZET’'T¥ 000°TS 000‘08 CO0T-0ZZT-T0-00V
00T ‘95 00T ‘95 000°’LS TIE’'S¥ 00T ‘95 00¢°ss TOT-0ZZT~-T0-00VW
000”°LZ 000°LZ 0007 LT Log’'te ooo’Le 000°LZ 00T-0ZCT-TO-00¥W
%C- (0TT'C) 00S'08T 00s‘osT 00S’€EBT T9E’'96 OT9 €8T 9LB'06T 0TTT
000°SE 000°SE 000‘SE 08%'TT 000°SE 9.8'S¥Y 00%-0TTII-T0-00%
gos’‘z 00s‘z 00S‘g 005°z 00Z-0TITI-10-00%
%LE- (OTT’ST) 000’9z 000‘9g 000°9Z OTT 'T¥% 000’%% Z0T-0ITT-T0-00%
%6T 000’6 000°‘LS 000’LS 00009 ?¥8°8E con’‘sd 000“%% TOT-0TETIT-10-00%
%S ooo‘g 0o0‘09 000'09 000’09 BE0'9¥% 000°LS 000“Ls 00T-0TTT-TO-00¥W
%1 eoo‘T 0E0’‘TZT DEQ'TIZT osz’‘zer £05°80T 0€0‘0TT LSE'92T 0TOT
0s 0s 0§ 0s 00%¥-0TOT-T0-00%W
goz’g ooz‘s 002’8 6TZ‘BT 00z’s LSE'ST POT-0TOT-TO-00V
%€ 000°T 08L°0% 08L0% ao0‘zZy 0€T “ZTE 08BL 6E 000°‘6E EOT-0TOT-TO-00V
Z0T~0T0T-T0-00¥W
ooo‘zL oo0o‘zL 000‘eZL ¥ST '8y 0o00'zL oo0’ZL 00T-0TOT-10-00%
|===mmmmmemeaeas Bl B LTy T TP DU Rl L LR LT sl EEEL L LT ERE TP
DHD % DHD § LIpang LIDANG Lapang TYOIOY LIDang TVOLOY FX FA0D
bl T T P TZ02 TZoZ TE0Z 0202 AQLX 0202 6T0¢T
HIL40AY¥ S84 TTYNIL TYNII HITaYd LIEA JILIOAY
0Zoe TZ02Z
T abeg

396png 120Z -~ NMOLSAITIHG 40 NMOL

SYOSSHASEW TYIOL
dxg Tenzoeajucy
Juawdinbg
L/ YI9TD
sxo08g998Yy
231D
SY0ESHSSY
LADANY TYIOL
juelstesy 3obpng
I927330 3@bpng
LEDANE

LOITIOD XVWI TVIOL
dxes Tenjoerjuoy
Jusuwdnbg
89DTAISE TrUOSISg
NOLLOE'TIOD XYL

ONILIQOY TVLIOL
300¥ juop
ITPNY juopn
SNILIANY

YOSIA¥EJNS TYIOL
dxg TenldovIjuo)
Jusudrnbg
Axejsaoog

MIsTD

S30TAIDE TRUOSIag
HOSITAYEANS

SADILSAD TYLOL
dxg TeEnloeajuon
Juswdtnbs

YI9TD

YISTD

88DTAIDS TRUOEISg
SADILSOL

QUYOH NMOL TVIOL
dxg Tenioexjuon
L03VUTPI0COD LUVRS
IISTO

S9DTAISS JURID
S30TATISE TRUOBISg
TIYOd NMOL

00Y¥ - aNNd TVEIANED

SLNOODDY

0Z0Z2-A0N-61



50T 0sg‘ze 000°05Z 000’0SEZ 000'SLZ SE0'H0E osL’Lze ¥8E‘BLE 0Z9T SONIATIINY TYIOL
T0¥-0Z9T-T0-00¥ II sBurpring
%0T 0§’z 000‘0sz 000’052 000°SLZ SE0‘%0E 0sL’lzg ¥8E‘BLE 00%-0Z9T-TO0-00V dxz Tenjoezjuc)
00T-0Z9T-T0-00¥ S9dTAISS Teucszeg
SBNIaTING
00s’¢ 005°¢ 00s’¢ STS’T 00s°¢ 006°T 09%T 440 LOW D3W ¥d TYIOL
ops’¢ 00S°g 005°¢ SZS°T 00S8°¢ 006°T T0P-09%T-T0-00V dxa s3jessy pexTa
0097-09%T-T0-00¥% dxz Tenjoeajuoy
00Z-09%T-T0-00% Juewdinbg
00T-09%T-T0-00¥ Iafeuey ooy doxg
440 LOW SOHd Joud
00s 00s 00§ 0og 00s 00%-0F%T HHEANTONT TYIOL
00%~0F¥FT-TO-00V dxg tenjoexjuo)
00Z-0%5T-T0-~00VY Jxaudnbyg
00s 0o0s oos oos 0o0s 00T-0%%T-T0-00¥ esoTazag TPuUCsSISg
AIINTONT
000’09 00009 000’09 9€ES‘2E 000°09 0E0 " %% 0Z%T AANNOLLY TYIOL
000709 000’09 000’09 9£8°¢TE 000°09 0£0 ‘9% 00%-0ZFT-T0-00% dxx Tenzseljuo)
00Z-0Z%T-T0-00¥ Juawdnby
TO0T-0ZPT-T0-00Y Axag Asuzo3y dog
00T-0Z%T-T0-00% AedTazag Aouxoqsw
ATNEOLIV
%% 008‘% oog‘zezT ooe‘zeI 000“€TT BSZ'Z6 COE'BTT ZES'EZT 0T%T MYHTO NMOL TW.IOL
%6- (000°T) 000’01 00001 000’01 s08°9 0001 TYE'PT 00%-0T¥I-T0-00V dxg Tenjoexiuop
%E€T 00S‘¢ 000°S 000°sg 000°'sg 00S°'T 00Z-0T%T-T0-00¥ Jusud by
Z0T-0T$#T-10-00¥ IOJBIISTUTWDY quexs
%2 000°T 008°5% 008'S¥ 000°9% ¥81°9¢ 008'%¥% 00S‘E% TO0T-0T%T-T0-00¥ Y2eTd umor A3ndag
%z 000°T 0o00°‘z9 goo‘ze 000’29 692'6% 000°T9 0SL’s59 00T-0THT-T0-00¥ TIOD Xelr/yIoTD umof
TITTD NMOL
SZE'T SZE'T SZE°T SZTE'T SZE'T 9SET ATY INEWSSASSY 101
00%-9SET-T0-00V dxd Tenioexjuoc)
SZE’T STE'T STE'T SZE'T STE'T 00T-9SET-T0-00¥ sS0TAZ®S TeuOsIag
| | | _ | | szbmm INAWSSASSY ~qg
DHO % 9HD § LEsang LEnang Lapang TYALOY IISHANG TVALDY HX Q0D SIROODOV
................. TZ0Z 1z02 1zZ0Z 0202 aQIx ozoe 6T0E
ALIOAY Ba TYNTJI TYNIA RITIHI Id5a ag1Ioav
0Z0% 1202
z @2beg

3=°bpng 1zoZz - NMOLEAITIHG 40 NMOL 0ZDZ-AON-6T



“"""n“ﬂ""“""“"""“n“"-ﬂ"n“““"

%E 0% 1€ ZTLTST T

E1) 000’2 05809
000°L

51T 0o0s 000°Ss
000'S
0S€°T

%% 0051 005°Z%

£ 74 00S 0B8’'%z
005’41
oSz

%8 00S 0€ET‘L
00S°L
005°L

%ET 000‘z 000‘8T

%ET goo‘z 000'8T

[

OHD % ©HD & Lasang
................. I202
ALdOAY ®A TYNIJI NI
ozZoz 1Z0Z
€ obeg

000‘L
0oo‘s
000‘s

0SE°T
005'Z%

08E“%T
00s“LT
114
0€E979

000‘s8T

LEG'DPET'T

0se’09
000°L
goo‘s
Qo0’s

0SE’'T
o0s‘ew

000“8T

396pPNE TZ0Z - MMOLSAITIHA 40 RMOLL

""“"““R“"““l“““"““"““'“
¥890€6 TLS'0ET'T PEB TOZ'T
ZEV ‘¥ 0S8°85 LPT B¥

000" L
£90°2 005 ‘% 000‘%
000’g 0%S
0SE’T 0SE’T 0SE°T
6T0’T% 000°T% LST Ty
¥TI8°6T 08€° %2 LEV 1T
6SH ¥T 00§ “LT LE6 T
052
SSE’S 0€9°9 005’9
895°G 005’L 990”4
BPS’S 00S“L 990°L
ISL/9T 00091 %09°12
TSLY 0T 00097 $09°1Z
|||||||||||| _..||r||||||..| e —mm——
YOIV l=pang TYOIOV HX
0Z0Z Alx 0Z02 6T0Z
QELIOqY

SRELI "IVIDEdS TVLIOL
00¥%-686T-TO0-00¥ uotienTessy
00%-086T-T0-00% Xel Troaded wvim
007-2L6T~TO- 00V Saxel =3eqey L3umnop
009-066T-T0-00¥ gyuabutiuo)
00%-0Z6T-TD-00¥SaNQ Dossy TedtoTuny
00%~0TI6T-TO-00W SuUr TTIdAT3ITNH
SHELI TYIDHJIS

T66T ALIAVS TYLOL
TO¥-T66T-T0-00Y seesupsreders Broum
00%-T66T-T0O-00¥ xg Tenipeijzucy
00T-T66T-T0-00¥ ojenTipioo) A3ageg

ALAIVS

089T DJ0¥d YIVd NID IOL
007-089T-T0-00V dXs TenioseIjuo)
ONISBIO0Ud YIVG TVHINTD

0LIT TIVH ® DNId INIED IOL

00%-0L9T-T0-00VW dxg Tenzoexjuon
DNITIVH ¥ ONIINTYd "TvdINTD

SINNODDOY

0Z0Z-AON-6T



(0) {005%) 00%°SZ 007 s 00%°'sg 00662 [(4: T ~14

ZLLY LSISSY NODH TVION,
%ST-  (00S'%) 000’sz 000°szZ 000°se 005’62 t4:1- R 1 ZLLY DNIDY ¥MO4 DO¥d 1oL
%ST- {005°%) 000‘0T 000°0T 000°0T 005°%T ZBB’6 00%-2LL9-~50-00V dxg Tenioeajuoy
T0T-ZLLY-S0-00Y IDATIT VIO
000°ST 000’ST 000'ST 000’ST 000°ST 00T-ZLL9-50-00¥ sooTAzeg Teuoszeg
ONIOVY 904 SHYEOOHJ
00% 00% 00¥ 0% 00% 0ISe HOIA¥ES SNVUALEA IOL
00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00¥-0TS9-50-00V dxZ Tenjoexjuoy
SEADIANES SNYHSITA
ST 000’z 0Z8’T6T 0Z8“T6T Q0L E6T Z0%“ZST 0Z8’68T SZ0°98T ZEIS ROILYINOASNVHL TYIOL
ST 000’z 0Z8°16T 0Z8°I6T D0L’€E6T Z0%’ZST 0Z8 ‘68T SZo‘98T 0T0S SAMH J0 IdNS TVIOL
005'T 00S°T 005°T 00€ 005 T 20T 00%-0T0S5-%0-00V dxm Ten3yoerjuc)
oLo‘sg 0L9'8 000’6 Z00“L 0L9‘e 0058 E0T-0TOS-%0-00V "3898y asdns Amy
%E 000°T 000°T% 000°T¥ 000’zy LOE’ZE 000°0% 000’6¢€ Z0T-0T0S-%0-00¥ XI8TD
%2 000°T 0S%¥'6% 05% ‘6% 000‘0s ZET‘6¢ 053’8% 00S‘L¥ TOT-0T05-%0-00Y AIBTD Kemybig
00Z°16 002’16 002’18 T99’€L 00Z°'T6 000°06 00T-0T0S-%0-00V 3Juspusjurzadng Amy
BAVMHOIH J0 IdnS
NOIIVINOdSNYEL
0 ¥65°2 090°0€9 090°0€9 SLE‘PED LSO'ETO 99%°LZ9 T09°%09 066€ ALEIVS JITENd TVIOL
%0 L 1154 090’909 0807909 9LE°0TO 906 °26% 99% €09 I8Z°18S AJES HONVIOEWY LOL
%T 8¥s5‘g 000°0S¢T 000°’05g ZSP’L¥T TS¥ LbZ TS¥‘LFZ 009°2%zZ 00%~1¥5%-20-00Y eoueTnquy UOSTIIED
09s°0T 095°0T 095°0T 095°0T TO¥-TPSP-20~-00% PIesy sdTaTeg
%0 9% 00S’S¥E 00S’G¥¢ ¥9£’zZse ¥ab‘see $S7'SPE TB9‘8EE 00%-0%5%-20~00¥ quy umol=drTTug
EDIANES FONVINANY
00S‘0Z 00S0Z 005°0zZ 1058t 005’02 005’0z 0ISE 8500 J0 TOWINOD IOIL
005 0T 005°0T 005’0t 005°0T 005°0T 005701 00%-0TSE-20-00¥ dxg Tenjoeajuop
000°0T 000°0T 000°0T 100’9 000‘0T 000°0T 00T-0TSE-Z0-00Y ®oDTAISS TeuOBIBg
£90d Z0 TOYINOD
oos‘e 00S5’¢c 00S°¢ 059°T 00S°¢ 0Z8‘z O0TEE TOHILNOD DIJIVEL IOL
00¥-0TEE~Z0-00V% @z Tenjoraguwo)
00S’€ 005 00S°€ 059°T 00s‘¢c oze‘z 00T-0TEE-Z0-00Y w®oDTAISS TeuOsIRg
| | | | | | TOYLNOD DTJIIVIL
el bt T Pty U T e e e e e e e Bl Kokt TP
DHD % ©HD & LIDANE LIDAnG IEOang TYALOY LEpang TYOIOY =X 2A0D SINNODOV
it TP TZ0Z TZ0Z 1202 0E0Z 4dix 0zoz 6102
ELIOAY 8SA TYNTI TENTA WITTHa 1dgq ag1d0ay
0zoZ TZ0Z
$ =beg

3ebpng Tzoz - NMOLSJITIHE 0 NMOL DEZ0Z-ACN-6T



%0 000°S L6S‘00Z’T L6S7002°T ST6'TO0Z T EE6'0T9 L6S SET T 09T ZLIT'T 0S5L

00§ 00§ pos 00Ss 008 0854 SNOLIVHEETE) TYIOL
00S 00S 00§ 00s 008 00P-055L-90-00% dxg Tenjoeajuo)
SNOIIVHETTED
00S“€1 00S‘€T 005“€T 000“ET 00S‘ET 000‘€T LSIH NMOL ‘T¥.IOL
Z0¥-0TSL-90-00¥ Tadeyd w10
000'€T 000°€T 000‘ET GO0‘ET 000°€1 000“ET TO%-0TSL-90-00¥ W84 ® SHOA
00s 00s 0o0s 00s 00%-0TSL-90-00¥ dxg Tenjoeajuo)
NYIHOLSIH NMOL
005°LZ 005°LZ oos‘Le 005°LZ 005°LE 005°LE 0TvL XOIgIT TYIOL
00s'LZ 005°LZ 005°LZ 005°LZ 00S8°LZ 00s’LZ T0P-0T¥L~90~-00¥ qeTtd "H % °¥
ANVEETT
%0 000°S L60’6ST T L6D’6ST'T STP09T'T EEF‘OLS LED'FST'T 096 °0€T’T 0ZOL WAQ¥ O=d 101
000°€2 000'€Z poo’‘ce 00o0‘cz 09%“€T TO0¥-020L-90-00% SPTAT4d pue =bpig
095’02¢E 095°02¢ 08s‘0z¢g BES ‘6L 09S°0Z¢ 65T '¥¥E 00%-020L-90-00V dxm Tenjoseajucy
969’s8 T0Z~0Z0L~-90-00¥ sgear]
00L'% 00L % 00L'¥ eI’ 00L‘F 91I6’g 00Z-0Z0L-90-00¥% juasudnby
%T 000°T PZ0'EF P20°Ed 00s‘ey 4 LA ¥Z0‘ZH 00Z°1¥ TTT-0Z0L-90-00% JUBPUS]IY ooy
%2 000°T 000 “8¥d 000°’8% 00z 8% T96°LE 000’ LY S08'%% OTT-0Z0L-90-00Y Iepear] oey
00Z°'T¥ 00Z'T¥ 00Z'1T% 00Z'1% 9t19‘ze 60T-0Z04L-90-00¥ Iapeer] 097
S00‘9¢ BOT~020L-90-00¥ dng spunw¥prg
5T 000°‘T 00S°'TL 00S°TL oo0‘zZL Z¥6’9S 0os‘oL 000’89 LOT-020L-90-00¥ syIegyoey I03D02ITa
%Z 000t 090°55 090'SS 00Z°sg £99'¢c% 090°%5 9% ‘b5 ¥0T-0204-90-00¥ I0sTaTadng spupmpry
%z 000°T 885’05 885705 009’05 IS0’ 0% 885°6¥% 9T9'8% £0T-0Z0L-90-00¥ X32TD
S9¥‘TOS 59%‘T0S S9%‘T0S 9TS ‘06T S9% ‘106 LEZ'IS¥ 00T-0Z20L-90-00¥ ®30TAIag TeUOSISg
: | | | | | NOIIvAYOMY
- e = - e o e Ak = o omom o IIIIIIIIIIII_Illlllllllll —— e o o el I S - e = - - -
DHD % BHD & IEpang Lasang IEpandg TYNLOY IEDang TYQIOV HX =AOD SINNODDV
it T T PP TZ0Z 1ZozZ TZ0Z 0Z0Z QLA ozoe 6T0C
HLIOUY €A TYNIJ TYNTA WITZad Ld=Ea TRLIOqY
0zoz TZ0Z
g 9beg

3°6png 1zoE - NMOLFLITIHG 40 NMOL 0Z0Z-AON-6T



Hﬂ“l“""“““"l“u"""“"H"l““"“"““l“"n“"“"l“"ﬂ“u““ﬂ“""“"l“""“"

A S s CESE=ESES—SE=asso=ma—

"““n““““"-H“"n“"““n“"“""“"""“““"""“u““""""“""“"““n“

%T 6¥9 0% 0CT’SSP’P  LB6'LPP'F  OTE’685'F  TES'S60°C 183/ 5TP Y TEO‘STE’% 00Y - dONddV aNOZ TVNENED 10T

%T-  (8%T’‘Z) ¥ST’0ET ¥ST 0ET ¥ST‘0ce 668°5¢ ZOE'ZET 1224131 HOIAWHS I4=d TVIOL

000°0€ 000°0€ 000°0€ 000*0€ 80L-0€L6-60-00Y TI®H tMolL/3saxegur

%ET-  (000°0Z) 000°0€T 000’0€T 000‘0€ET 000°0ST 809-0£L6-60-00Y TT®H umMogr/Tedrourzg

95991 LOL-0£L6-60-00V¥  Xouuy-q/3ssxsjur

TTE'LE L09-0£L6-60-00¥ xeuuy'q/Tediourig

%05~ (9LE‘E) §90°g 590G §90‘§ I9%°8 05¥%‘8 90L-0€L6-60-00Y ISTTog osu/38sx93ur

9sT Z¢ 9STZE 9ST‘ZE 98T ‘2¢ 9ST’2E 909-0€L6-60~00¥ISTTOE deu/TedrouTag

S0L-0EL6-60-00¥ eseaT/383 93U

%00T~ (90879) 908’9 9089 S09-0€L6~60-00¥ asea/Tedroutag

%EE~  (996°T) £E6°C £€6°E £€6°€ 668°G 668°S 798°% ¥0L-0€L6-60-00¥ Joou »ay/3saxsqur

00062 000’62 00062 0006€ 000°62 00062 ¥09-0£L6-60-00¥ 3Oo¥ oey/Tedjoutag

SOIANWES IEEA

%T €959 LBB’ESE PTE LYE $ZE'LBE BIS'62L YEE'LY6 6BE‘6LE 0006 LIZENSHE FIROTANT LOL

T08-0906-80-00Y  @pweansur Tejusg

%1 €959 ISL'TH 88T‘9€9 88T '9€9 STZ’98% 88T “9€9 190’685 008-0906-80-00¥ SoUEINFUI TEOTPSH

000°T 000°T 000°T ELD'T 000°T 09%°1T 008-5506-80-00¥ sur A3T1TTqesTq

00S 00S 00 00S 008-0506-80-00¥  sur jusuwlordweump

6€6 ‘DS 6€6 ‘%5 6E6°¥S ¥LE‘SE 6€6'HS P8I 1S 008-0%06-80-00¥ duop 8, ueunizoM

00S°S2T 005°SZT 00§°SZT €95°8L 00S‘52T SL9°0ZT 008-0£06-80-00¥ A3panoeg Tetoos

LET'6TT LET* 62T LET'6TT €6E°LZT L6T°62T 600 TZT 008-0T06-80-00¥  IJusWeITlay e3eig

SLIJENIY TAXOTIRH

QIINaTHISIANN

005 “T9 00S°T9 005°19 8€6 ‘€T 00S'T9 96’ LE BEDIANES WWOD 3 SWOH TVIOL

00S‘8T 00S ‘8T 005 ‘8T §Z8'€T 00581 5L0°52 0188 SRIVIITNED TYIOL

0058T 00S ‘8T 00S°8T SZT8ET 00S’8T SL0°ST 00%-0T88-L0-00¥ dxg Ten3oeIjzu0D

SETIILINED

000’c¥ 000°€E¥ 000°E¥ £1T'0T 000°¢c% 1Z€°2T 0918 FOVEAYD ¥ SS0JFY LOL

000°SE 000°sE 000°SE SE8°S 000°SE TLE'L 00%-09T8-L0~00¥ dxg Ten3deazuc)

T0T-09T8-L0-00¥ Juepuejurzsdng

0oo‘s 000’8 0008 BLZ'% 000°sg 0S6°% 00T-09T8-L0-00¥ B890TAZ9S TeuOEISg

HOVEUVD GNY E5047d

| | | _ _ mmou>mmw ALYNOWWOD QNY SHOH

e = ey IIIIIIIIIIII_IIIIIIIIII]I.IIIIIIIIIIII e e - - ————— [ e e mm g — . ——— -

OHD % OHD § LEpang LEpnang Lasang TYOIDV LInqog TYOALOV EX 2A0D SINOODDY
L BT 1202 1202 1202 " 0Z0Z Qix ozoz 6102
B1d0QV SA TWNIZ TUNIL HITENS Laga a=gidoav
0Z0z2 1202

9 sbeg

3ebpnag TZ0Z - NMOLSAITIHA d0 NMOL 0Z0Z-AON-6T



%P 004708 020'EZE‘T

%6T 00’09 000“0LE
(114 0l ¥
oo0’‘z
000‘89
000°’%

%€E-  (000°T) o000’z
oo%‘e
000‘%
00L4‘599
ooo’‘s
00%

%9- {oog’sg) COL PET
000°LT

|oomomeme e |ememeoaaaee

DHD % BHD $ LADANG
................. TZozZ
ALd0aY 84 TYNIA TYNIJ
nzaz TZ0Z
L =beg

0Z0"€EE’T

000'0LE
0ZB8’€E
ooo“‘2

000’89
000'%

ooo‘e
00% '€
000 ‘%

00L'g999
000’8
oo¥w

Q0L PETY
Qoo“‘Le

odo‘szeg
0Z8’ce
000’z

000’89
000'%

ooo’e
00%‘E
000‘w

00L’599
000‘s
00%
00L’PET
000’LE

aebpng TZog - NMOLSAITIHd A0 NMOL

9€S°T09

£ve‘oo0z

0098°9%
I9%°'¢2

0T’z
0EP‘T

ooo0‘o0sz
igs‘'g

T9E“ LY
(4°1: 3} 4

0ZeE‘ZLZ'T

000‘0TE
0Z8 €€
oo’z

000’89
000'%

000°’€
00%°¢t
000'¥

00L"599
opo‘g
00%
000'EPT
ooo‘Le

596'89% ‘T

9%L°0LE
0ZB‘eg

0BE’00T
BL6'E

968°L
€86°'T

EZT'TLL
Z96°¥%
949
ETT'8ET
88z ’sg

TOLOY 9X
6102

- ANQS 'TVEENSS TYIOL
0ZBE-00V sweifoxg yanox
ELLE-00W Burhby Toy swezBoig
860€-00¥ Jueas sbplg sjeag
680£-00¥ uvis/doxg Tesw san
090€E-00Y 398 =paodey - wavs

SO0E-QOY xel, abebyxon szan
TO0E~-00W eytdey xag SN
TLLZ~-00Y ENORURTTIOS W

S0LZ-00¥ SuoljRUOg puR 833ITH

0992-00¥ doxg Teeay jo sTesg
0T9Z-00Y 1ted Jaog/seuty
¥¥SZ-00V sagua0TT bHog
0T®EZ-00% doxg teey Tejuay
T0%Z-00¥ I88I37Ul queqg

68TZ-00¥gaTIRIBWL) Op weu3ng
0ETZ-00W Buttoiosy/esngey
6802-00¥ TTOoUNOD e3ay weugng

T002-00¥ §933 D9Y ¥ yxeq
SSZT-o0vW ¥983 JIeTD
EETT-Q0V 8994 UOTIDaLTOD XEL
0LTIT-00¥ AL 9Tqed

060T-00¥ sS9xel uUo Usg % JuT
T80T-00¥ x®L neTT/Aead asylo
aNOJ TYHEANTD 00V

SHONAASY

Jdoo BLNOODDY

0Z0Z-AON-6T



coz’ozT ooz‘oer ooz‘ozTE ¥95'98 0oz‘oer 00929 ocog ONINNYI TZIOL

Z0%-0Z08-L0-T0H g83uTsng oS13eusey
00S’E0T 00s*goT 005 °€0T YOE LL 00S“EOT 06t°LEZT oow-onom-hclﬂom nkuﬂusuumuunou

002-0Z08-L0-T0Q jusudynby

I0T-0208-L0-10€ YISTD AZIg TEUOSBISg
DOL 9T 00L9T 00L'9T 092’6 00L'9T 0TZ'ST 00T-0Z08-LD-TOW 89DTAI9E TRUOSI3]
DNINNYTIA
005°6T 00S°6T 00S°6T SI8’zT 005’61 9T0”’8T 0TO08 DNINOZ TYIOL
005 ‘% 005°% 005’'% s9z2‘¢ 00S ‘¥ 9T0‘g 00%-0T08-LD-TOE dxd Tenjoexjuon
00Z-0T08-L0-T0H Juaudnby
TOT-0T08-L0-T09 ISTD Axeg TeuosIag
000’ST 000“ST 000°ST 0SS°0T 000°ST 000°ST 00T-0T08-L0-108 @SedoTAZes TeUOBIRg
ONINOZ
OT¥L AUVHEIT "VIOL
00%-0T%L-90-TO0H dxa Tenjoezjucy
ANVaIT
0zo¥ IVLS IIA OFY TVIOL
00%-020%-20-TOH dxa TenzdeRIjUC)
SSDILSIIVIS TYLIA DIY
%h- (092'6) 0EB’PET 0EB‘PET 0L% ‘692 895'88T 060 ‘%% ZIS’902 0Z9€ DHISNI 9018 TYIOL
000°ST 000°ST 000°ST £¥0°zZ 000°ST ZEP'FT 007-029€-20-10€ dxg TenjorIzUC)
TOZ-0Z9€-Z0-T09 Isea]
0LS’L 0LS L 0LS’ L L1581, 0LS L 00g-0Z9£-20-10% Jusudrnbyg
0oon’sg 0oo‘sz 000°szZ ZEG'L 000752 SO0T-0Z9€-Z0-10€ aogpadeur Agndaq
%9 ovL 000'%T 000*%T 000°%T SEL'OT 09Z'€T 000‘€T ¥0T-029€-Z0-TOW TTeYSIEH =IXTJ
%2 0001 008'S¥ 008°S¥ 000‘9% ¥8T'9€ 008'%¥ 005 ‘€% EQT-0Z9€-Z0-109 AISTD aTog TRUOSIDG
%00T- (000°€T) 000°ET S8’z 0D0‘ET ogs‘er €0T-029¢~Z0-T0g30%eaqeTuTUpY A3ndeg
%z 000t 096°6¥% 096 ‘6% oov‘os PFS6E 096°8% 000'8% TO0T-0Z29€-Z0-10d IISTD AISg TeuosIsg
%T poo’t 00S‘LL 005" LL 005'gL BBL'TY 00592 000’SL 00T-~0Z9€-20-T0W I03PIITUTUDY
NOIIVELIS ININAY HQOD
%82~ (005°T) 9sL’g 99L°E 99L°¢ 8LS'T 99z’s TE9'T L¥0ddNs LAOD TYIOL
00%-02TE-10-109 JuswWeDIOJUN Mmery
00%-066T~-TCG-T0Y Jusburjuocy
99L 99¢ 992 £8¢ 99, 1447 00%-086T-T10-T0HE ¥BL TI0afed vIn
%€E-  (00S’'T) 000‘€ 000‘€E 000‘€E S6T°T 0S¥ LBT'T 009%-0L9T-10-108 UOTIBITITPOD
© L¥0440S LACD TVNINGS
| | | | | | | maﬁanb_mnHmabo TVHENID T0E
DHD % OHD § IEoang LIDAN IIpang TYALDY IEOANg TYALDV 93X qaoo SLROODDY
e e T T TZ0Z TZ0T TZ0Z 0Z0Z aix 0zoz 6T0Z
ZLdOQY BA TYNII TYNTA WITHEd Id=a aQILAOqY
0zoz TZ0T
g abeg

3sbpng 1zoZz - NMOLSATIIIHG 40 NMOL 0ZOZ-ACN-6T



%€ 000 ‘01 o00‘0TE oo0’00€ 000°00E ¥¥8'SLE 000‘00€E ZBD‘9TE

TOE - 'ITA/IDO Q4 NID IOL
6B6T-T049 Juexn Ije3s » pod
680£-T0H aIzosUO) ITaug 3daqg
880E-TOH SPOD BITd ¥ BplE
To0E-TO08 eltded 123 5zN
OLLZ-TOH Butuoz ‘gder
S0LZ-TOH JUOTIPUOQ ¥ 23I1DH

T0¥2-T08 sburuzed » gjssxsqur
%E 000°0T 000'0TE 000‘00€ 000’00¢ PPBSLE 000‘00¢ ZBO'9TE 09ST-Tod 8333 deur A3egeg
T80T-108 S3Xel JO neTT ur
AFY - FOVTITA-LOO NEO-TOH
n“l“"“"““"""""".“"“"n“""n“"""n“"“I.“"u"“n“"“n““.““““.“n““'""““I“"“"““““"““n“u“un“n“"n“"““““n“uﬂ““"“"“"“"““"“u“""“““"“"““"“n““"“u““"“"“
%0 09%°T 925’619 9Z25°%09 99T’619 6T0°99¥% 990’819 68Z/LZS T09 - FDVTIIA/IOO NED TVIOL
5F- (0BL’Z) E6T'LY E6T’LY E6T’L9 806°95 €EL6'69 IG9°L 0ELE IDIAMAS LEIA TYIOL
%LZ-  (L¥0’®) ESE’0T €S6°0T €S6°0T 98BS ‘6 000°ST CO0L-~0ELE~60-00Q ¥ouuy - a/389I93uT
TEZE'LY ZZE'LY ZZE LY TZE' LY TEE' LY Z09-0€L6-60-001 xouuy g/ Tedroutag
T¥0'1 ZFO0T ZH0'T THO'T T0L-0EL6-60-008 agesT/l89x83u]l
9Lg’y, 9L8'L 9L8°L 9L8°L T09-0EL6-60-00G asear/Tedroutag
00L-DEL6-60-001 S8BT /3g9I93uT
%00T- (TS9°L) TS9'L IS58°L 009-0€EL6-60-00T esesy/Tedroutag
IDIANES 1E5a
%ZT 000°ST LEB HPT LEB6ZT LEB’6ET 9T1S“L6 LEB'6ZT 850°%ZT 0906 SLIJEANIE TVIOL
008-0S06-80-T0H Ful Telusg
SLT 000 ’ST ¥8EEOT ¥8E’88 ¥8£'86 9%L'6g ¥8€'8Y 6LE’SH 008-0906-80-T0W SUl TESTPON
£PE’ST EFPE’ST EFE’ST 099°1T EFPE‘ST 09T‘%T 008-0€E06-80-T0€H &31anosg Teroos
0TT ‘0z 0TT oz 0TT’92 0TIT’92 0TT'9Z 6TS‘¥2Z 008-0T06-80-TOH JTIWIITYISY °3838
SLIJANAE THAOTIWE
00Z’62 00Z°6% 002’62 oLo’egz o0z ‘sz T98'9z 0608 TIDNNOD AMHESNOD IOL
002 ooz (1]1}4 0S¢ 0oz 96S°T 00%-0608-L0-TOQ dxa Tenaoeajuopn
00Z-0608-L0-T0€W Jusudnby
€0T-0608-L0-10H XI3TD
000w 000‘% c00‘% §29°g 000°'% SLE'E TOT-0608~L0-TOH BISqUeN DVD
000°szZ 000’se ooo’sz S60°6T 000‘sz 0L8°TZ 00T-0608-L0-108 I030adsur spueyem
| | | | | | | QEYOd NOIIVANISNOD
DHD % HHD § Iapang IZHang LAOAng TYALOY Iasang TYOLDY A > (i (o]e] SINNCDDY
i R T TP 1202 TZ0Z 1202 0202 4Ix 0Zoe 6T0Z
ALJOAY 8A TYNIA TYNIL RITHHq ILdEq a=Idoav
ogoz 1202
6 obeg

Jjsbpng 1Zoz - RMOLS4ITIHG 40 NMOL 020Z-AON-6T



09LB YIALSYSIA DUIWNH I.0L
00¥-09L8-%0-Z09C dxm Tenioeazuc)

HALSVSIQ AONHEOUHWT

000°89¢ 000°89¢ 000’89¢c 8z8'18 000’89¢ PEB 6LE ZHIS TYAORTY MONE JIOL
000°0€Z 000°0€Z 000°’0€Z 6T9'65 000’pET 6EL'¥PET 00%-Z%TS-%0-Z08a dxs Tenjoezjuon
000°BET 000°BET 000‘g8€T 6oT‘ze 000°BET SQT"SET 00T-Z%1S-%0-Z0d9a S9D0TATIDE TeuUOSIDg
TYAOKEY MONS
%ET 0%0“9¢ ZL6'08Z ZLe'08Z ZLe’08e ¥6¥ B8 ZEE'PFE S0T’LZZ 0FIS SNQANVTIEDSIH I0L
000‘SE 000’sE 000’'S¢E §58°¢ze 000°SE BE6E’ZS ¥0%-0%TS-$0~209a TYAOKEY HHMT
%80T 000°LZ 000°2gs ooo‘zs oog’zs LEE’SE 000’sz 092’L E0F-0%#TS-$0-Z0aq 82TIJ0
0008 000‘g 000‘e Los’g oco‘s 89¢Z°¢ ZOP-09TS-¥0-Z09a Ajageg
ZE6'9E ZEG'9E ZE6'9E CE6'9¢€ ZE€6°9€ S60'8¢ TOP-0PTS-$0-209Q BUl Trredrirng
%0T 000°‘sg 000’585 000°SS 000°SS ELB'LE 000°0S LEL'E¥ 00%P-0FTS-$0-208a dxg Tenjoeijuon
%¥ 0%0°% 0%0 b6 0%0 ‘%6 0%0°¥6 0€B°LS 000°06 L¥E'Z8 00T-0%TS~¥0-T0EAd SepTaIeg Teuosieg
BOOANYITIDSIN
T 00T’% 005°80S 005°80S 00% %05 EPE‘OCH 0%’ %0S SE0’06S 0ETS AMANIHOVH TYILOL
0%S’8T 0%S°8T 0%5°8T 0S%°5T 0%¥s’81 0%¥S’8T Z0%-0€IS-F0-Z09q BOTDEY Yonal
098‘BZ 09882 09882 CO0T’'BZ 098’82 098’z TOP-0ETS-$0-Z0HQ S0l 3I939Td YOEeR
000°98T 000 °S8T 000°58T 609 “%ST 000°58T ZhL'69T 00%-0E£TS-%0-Z0ga dxg Tenyoexjuoy
T0Z~-0€ETS-P0D-Z0aa osear
000’09 600’08 000°0s 666 6% 0o0’os 06T 99 00Z-0€TS-%0~-Z0EA JuawdTnby
%Z 00T‘% 00T ‘922 00T ‘9z ooo‘zezz €BT ZLT ooo‘zze EOL S0€E 00T-0ETIS-¥0-Z08Q S°DTAISE TruosIag
AYIANTHOYR
%0Z- (£2%’'¥%E) OVE'SET OPE‘SET DFPE'SET ESL'69T T96“LPT ZZIs SATHD TYIOL
%02- (€Z¥'%E) 0PE'SET 0PE’SET ovE‘GET E5L°69T T96' L¥FT 00%¥-22TS-%0-20€a dxg Tenzoezjuon
S4IHD
STE~  (F9L°%0Z) 9EE‘B5F 9EE'FSH 9EE'FSF 9Z%'E6€E 00T’659 L¥Z'%09 ZITS SLNANIACHAHI TVIOL
T0%-Z1T1S-¥0-209a SdaIHs
00%~ZTITS-$0-Z0RA Sro¥d SNYYL €08
%Fe- (00T 90Z) 000°00% 000°00% 000‘00¥% EET‘OLE 00T ‘909 €S8 TES 00Z-ZTTS-%0-Z09a Le1ano TesTdep
%€ 9€EE“T 9EE’BS 9€f ' §5 9EE’'HS £6Z'¢€EZ 000°€S S6E’'ZL 00T-ZITS-¥0-Z0EQ SODTAISF TeUOSISg
SINIWIAOYANI
%C 86€°LT 00E‘8T6 00€ 816 O0E’BT6 S9T'TS9 TO6°006 0TO0‘EEL 0TIS SYIVaEy TYSANID LOL
000'STT 0D0'STT 000°STT T89°6E 000°STT 8TT‘LE CO0F-0TTS-70-Z09a T98aTd/sen
000'0% 000’0% 000°0¥% ST0‘SZ 000‘0% Z88'5E T0F-0TTIS-$0-20Eq Butrassurbug
000°06T 000’06T 000°06T 66%°LOT 000 ‘06T STI8 95T 00%-0TTS~$0-Z0EQ dxg 1enioeajuon
%€ B6E’LT DOE’ELS DOE‘ELS 00E’ELS 0LE'8LY Z06'SSS S6T*9S¥% 00T-0TTS-¥0-Z06Q SeDTAISE TeUOEIDg
SUIVATE TYHENID
| _ | | | | | nomn_qH> AAISIN0 AVMHOIH
il DL L E L e TP T Py P S L O mme | el DT
PHD % PHD § Ianang Iaoandg 1anang TYALOY Lanang TYOALOVY X A0 S5LNOODOY
e T LTty TZ0Z TZ0Z 1202 0Z0Z dLx 0zoz 6T0Z
TLIOAY SA TYNTI TYNTI HITaad Laaa agraoav
0zZoz TZ0T
0T obeg

3ebpng TzoEz - NMOLISJITIHd 40 NMOL 0Z0Z-AON-6T



"““““l"l“"ﬂ“l“uﬂ“ﬂ“"ﬂ“'“""“l“u"“l

= = "““""“u““-H“"“"““"““““l“n“u'""“"n“"“"““H““““"“nl““l“H.“"u"“l““"“n“"““““"““““"“"“""““““n““ﬂ
%02~ (€29 °%P) OFE'ELT OVE'ELT OFE'ELT B86z’'eZ €9L°L1IE 9L8'PTIE Z090-1TIA HATSINO AYMHOTH I
096€-Z0HA YIEd SAN
0000-z09a TePOH TATNH
68S£-Z049q 8§ BUBIL (NS §iN
Z0SE-z08a S8dIHS
%02~ (€z¥’'¥%%) 0PE’SET 0PE‘SET 0FE’SET £9L'69T T96 LT T0SE-204da Axg pojEpTTOSUO)
ON.PN.-NQNQ ﬂ—.—ﬂﬂbﬂm m_m.m._”U.ﬂD
T0LZ-Z08Q WIO3S SAN Ixld Joy
089Z-z0Hd ma.mhmbovﬂm Sur
0S92-Z0Ea deios o aTeEg
%L9-  (00070T) 000’s 000°s 000°s PS5'F 000°ST TLY 62 TO¥Z-209a sbutuiey » gjsoxaqur
000 €€ 000°ce D00’'EE PRLYLT co0‘ce ¥P¥LE 00EZ-208a 83,409 I07 saoTAIDg
209d - TIA HTISIN0 AVMHOHTH
“"“un".“n“.“"““l“l““"“nl“u"“.“u"“.““ﬂ“u“"l“nn“I“"n“l“"'“"""n“'“"-l“u"“n“""“‘“""“"“"""ﬂ“u"“.“"“un“"“"““"“n““““n“"“"n“"“"“""“"““"“n“u"“
%P- {885 °€£9T) €EST°0Z9°¢E £59%°509°¢ ESE‘T0G'E 082°%05°¢Z Tv0’9%8L°E TES'¥8S°E €090 - TIA HAISIONO AMH IOL
%T 896'T BT EST 89T°2ZST 891’'2sT L¥0'Z0T 00Z'0ST Z9E‘0ST IDIANES I99d TYIOL
%69~ (8%0°L) £0T’€E €E0T‘E £0T’¢E LoL'S IST'0T 958’8 004-05L6~60~Z09Q a8®aT/3saI9uT
S90°6%T S90'6%T S90‘6%T 0FE‘9S 60 0%T 90S‘I¥T 009-05L6-60-Z09a asealr/TedrouTig
00L~0TL6-60-Z08d JUI Spucg TeTI=g
009-0TL6-60-209a0 urIg spuog Tetass
HDIANWAS LEAQ
%C £60°9T LEB'ZO8 LEB'LBL LEB'LBL LLE'OLY ¥HL'98L BTO ZSL 0006 SLIJANSYE TYIOL
£82°¢c €BE’E £82'¢ 9TE’T E8Z¢ ZE9’z 00%-086T-T0-009a xel [Toxked VIW
8Z%° L1 8Z% LT BZH'LI PSL'TT 82V’ LT STH’ST T08-0906-80~Z09a Sul Te¥jusq
%€ 000°ST Z90'1IS¥ T90'9E% £90'9¢€% BLO'BTY TH0°’9EW ¥OLE 9T 008-0906-80-~Z09a BUI TexTpsH
000°T 000°T 000°T 000°T 9%s 008-5506-80-z0]a sur A31T11qESEIqQ
0o0s 0o0s 0os oos 008-0S06-80-Z0ga 5ul Juswiordwsup
€50°91T €S0°91T £50°91T LOL' LS ESO‘9TT £S0FTT 008-0%06-80-Z09Q dwop susunjaoy
ST E60°T BES'TR B8ES‘TB 8€5'18 #S6°TS S¥¥ 08 SHP9°08 008-0E06-80-Zpaqg {3Tanoeg TeIDOg
ELE'TET ELETET €EL6'TETL 89T ‘0ET €ELE6'TET €29'22T 008-0T06-80-Z0HQ JaBWIITISY 93e3s
| | | | | | _ | SLIJENEE THXOTINI
I.||.III|.IIIIIIIII_IlIIllIIIlll - - S e e - - o - - e o Eall T T — - e . S N e N e S e E . — . -—-—
DHD % DHD $ IIoanyg IIFsang Igpandg TYALDY IIpang TNALOY =X qAOD SINOCIDY
St T T P 1Z0Z 1202 T20%Z 0Z0Z QiX 0ZozZ 6T0Z
HIJOAY BA TYNIS TYNII WITHHd Ld=Ea a=Id0ay
ozoe 1202
TIT abeg

Jebpng 1ZoZ - HMOILSAITIHA 40 NMOL 020Z-AON-§T



""““n"“"n""“"“n“""u"“""““n“"""“n““""“““"““u'““l“"n““'“"n“n“""““""“I““n““n“"““"““""“u“““““n““"““u““n"““
%0 ZST'T SL6'06L EVD“Z6L EF0’E6L €Z8°68L EZB68L 8Z0'08L ¥IPE 48 - BONVIHDIH N 1OI
%0 TST T SL6'06L E¥0'Z6L EFP0‘Z6L EZ8 68L €28'68L - 8T0’08L 00%~PTPE-Z0-STAS 32bpng xveyy T84

ST4S - SONVIHOIH HINON

""“"ﬂ“"“"“""""ﬂ“"-n“nl“n'“H.ﬂ““ﬂ“ﬂ““llu“ln“"““"n“n-ﬂ“"“n""“"n“H"““““"HUH““u“

“"“""n“"“""“""““""“""""""“““""n“u“""““"“ﬂl“"""""“"“""“““““u“
%E- (zeL'T2) 0ST’SLL 0ST’SLL 0ST'SLL CB8‘96L Z887964 0LT'LBL £T¥E ¥TAS - S§ WE¥D IoL
CO0P-ET¥E-20-FTAS PIemy 3adDTadIesg
TO¥-ETPE-ZTO-PTaS dmop sxayzom
%E- (ZEL'TZ) 0ST’SLL 0ST'SLL 05T‘SLL 288’96l ZRE’96L 0LT L8 00P-~ETHE-Z0-FTdS IUOD SITI U0 prRg
PT28 - S§ NOSIWHVD
“nI“"“nH“nn“"“"n“n""““""""“ll."“““"""“"—“““"“""“"I""n“"'"un““'““'“““““n““""“|||““l““N““I"“l““.““"—““ﬂn""n““"“"““""“""“"“un““"“"““"““""““"“
0L6°2Z9 04L6°C9 0L6°Z9 0L6'2Z9 0L6’'ZY SPT'S9 CIFE Tdge - TI$# SHA LOL
C0¥-CIVE-Z0~ETAS PIeMy aoTazog
TOFP-ZI¥E-20-ETAS dwuc) sasyzom
0L6°Z9 0L6'Z9 0L6‘Z9 0Le‘ZY 0LE'Z9 S¥T1’'S9 009%-ZTI¥E-20-€TAS JUS) SATI UO pred
ETdS - T# NMOLSJITIHA
""“'“"lﬂ"ﬂn“'""n“"" "“""""““"""““"“""n"“““"““"“"""“""“"n“"n“"n“"""""“""“u““n"“u.“""““““n'"“““""“""“"“““““"““"““"““n“"'““"““"““u““"““
%T 0se’e 0S6“TIBZ 056182 096°T82 009‘sLe 009'6LT DSE'BLE 0T%E TITas8 - 1IA INOD IOL
00L-0EL6-60-0038 JUI/I28 199Q
009-0EL6-60-0048 urxg/Ies jqeq
%E- (000'Z) 000°6%S 000’65 000°6S 000'1T9 0o0‘t9 000’19 Z0P-0TI¥E-20-TT4E PIMY 3DTAIBg
%2T- (000°‘E) 000“‘ST 000’ST 000“ST 000“LT 000’ LY 000"LT TOP-0T¥E-20-TTIS duwop sasyIom
%€ 0sSE’9 0S6°LDZ 056°LDZ 0S6'L0DZ 009’102 009°TOZ 0SE ‘96T 00%-0TFE-Z0-TTdS IUOD IITI WO pFed
_ _ _ | _ TTAE -e2T# FOVIIIA TYILNENIINOD
lllllll..llll..lll_|...l||.n|l|ll| |||||| e m e il e e T T [, - e e m—m— - -
DHD % DHO % IISang LEDang LEDANT TYALDY LADJNL TY¥OLDV X JAO0D SLNOODOY
ittt TZoe TE0Z TZoZ 0g0Z dIx DZ0Z 6T0Z
HILJ0AY S4A TTYNTIA TIYNIJ WITHEHEd IdEa THLAOAY
020z 1202
gT abeg

3ebpng 1zoz - NMOLSAITIHA 40 NMOL 0Z0Z-AON-6T



n“""“n“""“n“""“"““I““.““I““l““-““ﬂl““l““.““""“.““'“"n““"“"““""""n“n"“"““"“"“““'“"n“""““““““““““"““n“"““n““"““u“““““““"““l““""“"““""“
%E 08T‘% 0E€0’LST 0€0“LST 0E0’LST CET’ZTT DLBEST S9S BT 0ZME - ISTQ WHLVM INOD TYIOL
0692-02MS ASY peTITESRTOUq
0s 0s 0s 0fT 0s 0s TOFPC-0ZMs sburuaey % 3sexajur
S¥IZ-02mMs ssbxeyy del » xegjay
TPIZ-0ZMESBSTeS paIajan predun
%E 09T‘% 086 95T 086°9ST 086°99T 0007211 0Zg“ZST STS'8%T 0%TZ-0ZME S3TeE PIISjoN
0ZMS - ISIQ ¥WAIYM TYININTLINOD
%C SLB‘S 06L'ELE 06L'ELE 06L'ELT 2657881 5T6°L9T 0IS‘0EZ 0ZME-NILVM TVININILNOD 'TYIOL
S9L‘6T S9L’6T S9L’6T 22T’ S9L76T 90L’%T TEOLDVELNOD TVIOL
000-0566~T0-00MS pung den o3 suexr
S9¢ S92 S9Z ZET 59z L6T 00%-086T-T0-00MS ¥eL T10i1Led VIR
00S°% a0s’% 00S'% 005’% 00S‘% 00S‘% 00%-0T6T-TD-0ZMS sul Tra=adrlTnN
00L-0SL6-60-DZMSIUL puog BUTUIT Jwmiy
009-05L6-60~0ZM8UIgd pPuog SUTUTIT 3uuy
000°ST 000°ST 000‘ST 065°'% 000 ‘ST 600°0T 00%-0TEB-L0O-0ZMS dx3 urupy
TYALOVHLNOD
%Z- (000°%) 00S5°9ST 00S'8ST 005’9ST PE6'TOT 005091 695’ 92T ININAINDE TYIOL
000°SEZ 000°sZ 000’sz TO8'TT 000°’sZ 00F-0FEQ-LO-QZMS ABIBN Ydang
%¥- (000'€) 000°2Z¢L 000°ZL 000°2L 998'6€E 000'SL LLY'8% 00F~0EEB-LO-0ZMS 3TIng Iajem
%¥T- (000°T) 0009 0009 000°9 L88"¥ 000°L DET’S TO0Z-0ZEB-LO-0ZME ToMOg
00S’€S 00S°€S 005°¢5 0LE'SH 00S‘ES Z96°0L 00T-0ZEB-LD~-DZMS sxteday
INSNIINDH
5TT SL8'¢ SZS5‘L6 SZS’Le SZS'LE 9%V LL 059.L8 SET’T6 FOIAYES TYNOSEAd IOL
0009 0009 000°9 000'% 000°9 000°‘g 008-0%06-B0-0ZME dwop zoyaoM
0009 0009 0009 SST’S 000’9 90Z'9 008-0€06-80-0ZM8 f3TInoes Teroos
006 006 006 006 006 006 008-0T06-80-0ZMS JUBWBITIDY AN
%ET SLB‘6 529’8 SZ9'%8 SZ9°P8 I6€°LY 0SL'%L 6ZT'TE 00T-0TER-LO-0ZMS E8tIETReg
FEOIAYES TTYNOSHHJ
0ZME - IDINLSIQ WEIVM TYLNINILNOD
“"“"n““““““u"""““I““.n“"““nn“"I“"““"n“uu"Il."“""I“"n“"n“n"““"“"u"““"“""""““""“““““"“"“““n"""““u““n““"“““n““.““.n““"“““““u““n“““u"“"n“
000°0Z 000°02 000’02 000°0T 000°0¢ 000°0Z TYLOL
000’02 000°02 000°02 000°0T 000'0% 00002 DPIZ-0TMS 88Tes paIajeN
0TMS - IDTHLSIA HALYM ONTANYT NOSIHEYD
000’0z ogco‘oz 00002 oo0’0z poo‘oz 666'6T TYIOL
%%~ (LST) 980°9 9809 980°9 EPE‘D EFE’Y LS6'L 00L-0CLE-LO-0TMS JUI SDTAIBS Jge(
%2 LSZ PT6 ‘€T FIG'ET FI6ET LS9°ET LS9°ET Z¥0 2T 009-0€EL6-LD-0TME DUTIZ BOTAISE 33
00%-0TEB-LD-0TMSE TenjoeIjuoc)
| | | oaﬁm - LOTHISIq mnﬂds ONIANYT NOSINIYD
i kel el [P [ el B T S R P e =
DHD % ©OHD $ LEbandg LEDang 1LE9ang TYALOY Iaoand TYALDY EXA IO ELNNODOY
e L T TZ0Z 1zZ0Z TZ0Z 0Z0Z ALX 0z0Z 6102
HLAOAY BA TYNTJ TYNTA WITa¥a La=a qaIdoay
0z0Z 1Z02

£T abeg 3°6png TZ0Z - NMOLSAITIHA d0 RMOL 0Z0Z-AON-6T



%BL 0L®'%
SLT-  (00%)
%Z ozZe

%62 DST’%

%ST 05T 91
{0¥%8°T)

%92 000’8t

%5 00T ‘s

£ 34 ooz

%L 006'%

DHD % DHD $§

2LJOdY B8a TYNIA
ocoze TZoTZ

¥1 abegq

0TL'TL

oos‘e
00T

0zZ8’os
gez 8T

S6T'TZT

S6L°TET

06L'E
0SL‘EE

000’88
SST
000’9

005’66

000°€T
00s8’§
009’9
(1] +1-]
006°FL

LADANH
TZoz
TYNIL

0EL'TL OTL'TL T06°99
00s‘e oos‘e oo
00T Q0T 09
0Z8’0S 0zZg’os S60°1S
06T'8BT 062’81 9%1 ‘ST
S6Z €02 S6T €07 0EB 9%
S6L E0T S6L"E0T 0L9°69
06L'E O6L'E LBS’S
0SL'ET 0SL ez osL'ee
ooo’oL ooo’oL 96T'%€
56T 1314 LET
000’9 000’9 000’9
005’66 005'66 09T’LL
000“€T Q00‘ET 0%e‘6
00s’s 00s‘s o8z’e
009°s 009’s SIS‘¥®
00s 00s 00Ss
006°%L 006" %L SZ0’'65
||l|||||..|||_ |||||| N L

LIDANE LEDAAE

TZoz TZoZ 0202 aix
WITIyd Ldadq

3e6png 1Z0Z - MMOLSAITIHG J0 NMOL

TZ48 - LSIA ¥9vd TYINALNIINOD TTVWIOL
0LLZ-TZzas SNUBASY ERTIUN
S0LZ-TZdS SUOTIPUOT 3 533TH
T0¥Z-Tzds sbutureq ® jsozsjur
0TZZ2-~-TEds APUBRTIIOD SaxXE]
0TITZ-1Z2d8 ASTTEA Weujng seoxel
T00Z-tezdas sabreyd oey w» xxeg
TZd8 - ISTQT ¥4 TY.LNAELNTI LNOD

TEdE -~ ISIQ ¥¥vd VININIINGD LOI
dX3 TYAIOVHINGD IOL

as9I83ur
009-0EL6-60-12d8 qeyey weq/Tedroutag

0TTL
00L-0EL6-60-12d8

TOP~0TTL-90-TZdS uregq
00¥-0TTIL-90-TZds I3YI0 TTY
00%-086T-T0-TZ4s ¥eL T10xfed WIN
00%-016T-T0-TZdS SUl qerT

SISNHAYXE TYAIDVIINGD

LNIHIIA0E TYLOL
Jusudinby -osTH

ININITAOH

0TTL
00E-0TTL-950-TZdS

dDIANHEE TYNOSYEd IOL
Te3u=g

SUl TEOTIPSN

dwop saayIoM
A3Fannes Teroog
JUSWSITISY SAN
goTIeTes

BADTAYHS TYNOSURA
TZds - LISIQ Y4¥d TYININILNOD

SINAOODVY

T08-0906-80-T245
008-0906-80-Tzds
008-0%06-80-TZas
008-0£06-80-T2ds
008-0T06-80-TZdS
00T-0TTL-90-TZ4aS

o%Z'LY £ET6°%9
000°’€ ooo‘e
00T 00T
000‘0S 998’ L¥
0FT'%T LSZ'PT
SEo‘00Z LOE‘¥BT
SE9’S0T 9L9°66
0E9’s BLY'SG
0sL’eE 0SL'€T
opoo‘oL 8C0'€9
§52 oze
000’9 0009
00%'¥%6 T£9°%8
000“ET 000’2t
0os’s 00E‘E
00%'S I68'%
008 00s
00004 0%6 €9
LIADANG TALOV 9X
ozZoz 6T0E
daLa0av

0Z0Z-AON-8T



POT'EFE'TIT
00079.LZ
000°9LZ

EEQ'SEE'TT

ooo0‘9Lz
0o0‘sLz

00079L2
000‘8Le

lasang LEnand LEpand
................. 1Z02Z 1Z0Z TZ0Z
HLIOAY BA TYNIAL TYNIZ WITed Laga

ocoz TZ02

ST sbeg 31=5png

E6T'0ED

= SEEESs=CSCSEEarssa==m=c

[4 T0v€EZ2 gan

S RE S SSmESSoSSRSSa-c-aEss—==SEp==a
€ETB'60S'TT IS%¥30°1T SaNaDn

SR Na s samEEsOSSE==n=—aE=ms

000‘9LEZ oco’9Le

poo‘9Le 000‘9Le

Fl

60L’8BT T

"n“"“"“““"Hn"“u““"““"n“"n“."“u“““n“"n“"l""u“""“"".““""“n““nllll

%T LO6 % 00T‘SS0‘E 00T’'S%¥0°e 00T‘000°E
“"""'Il.""""""'“"’“"““"“““ﬂ"ﬂn“"""u-n“"“"“ﬂ““.l““I““""“nl““.““"n“"ﬂ““n“
5T~ (vL5°21T) 6EZ'LBE'TT

= ===

LzS'9zZ9°s

[
IIBHBII
IIO::OII
NEH 0B

S EESERrESOEERE=Sa==R==2

000“9LE

TO00T - OTEIIYALLOG T [ TYLOL

000“9LZ 00%-0T¥L-T0~007T TenjowIjuoy
| | | T007T - hmﬁ_ﬁHq QIEIIYELLOG " T° O
......................... [ == mm e | s p DI R
AYALOY LAOHAOE TYOLOY SX Faod SLROODOY
0Z0Z 4lLx 0zZoz 6T0T
QHLIOaY

TZ0Z - NMOLSAITIHA J0 NMOL 0Z0Z-A0K-6T



MEMORANDUM
December 3, 2020

TO: Philipstown Town Board Members
FROM: Carl Frisenda
SUBJECT: Work performed by the Philipstown Highway Department for the month of November

» We would like to wish everyone a safe, happy and healthy holiday season.

¢ The Highway crews have continued grading dirt roads and patching the paved roads, as well as blowing
leaves, for most of the month.

e A Jetter truck was rented for a week in order to clear pipes and waterways of debris such as leaves, item
4, rocks and sticks.

¢ We welcomed a new International truck to the fleet. It is a beautyl!
e The Material Bids were opened in late Octeber and will be awarded.

o The Highway Department received approximately 15 phone calls regarding road complaints and issues
for the month of November.

» Roughly $2,500.00 was spent on vehicle maintenance and repairs for the month of November.

Above monthly account submitted by:
Carl Frisenda, Highway Superintendent



RESOLUTION #-2020

The following Resolution was presented by , seconded by

unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby accepts the resignation of Deputy Town Clerk
Theresa Crawley effective December 31, 2020.

and



Theresa A. Crawley
3L Fair Street, BF
cold sSpring, NY 10516

October 29, 2020

Twra Percacclolo
Towwn Clerk
Town of Philipstowi

Tara;

Please aceept this Letter as my offictal notification that t will vetive from my
position as Deputy Town Clerk effective December 31, 2020,

t appreciate having beew given the opportunity to senve our community for the
past 11 years. it has beew a gratifying experience during witich thime 1 have
made many meaningful {riendships.

t will do what i can to help in making this transition go smoothly).

Thank you and Best regardls,



RESOLUTION #-2020

The following Resolution was presented by , seconded by and
unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby awards the 2021 Highway Material Bids as approved
by Carl Frisenda, Highway Superindendent.




TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

Town of Jhilipstowm

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
50 Fishkill Road
Cold Spring, New York 10516

(845) 265-3530
Fax (845) 265-7886

MEMORANDUM

Richard Shea, Town Supervisor
Town Board Members

Tara Percacciolo, Town Clerk
Carl Frisenda

November 5, 2020

2021 Bids - Letter of Recommendation

Carl Frisenda
Highway Superintendent

Attached are my 2021 Material Bid recommendations for the Town of Philipstown Highway

Department:



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS — 2021 PROPOSALS

#1 Bituminous Concrete — Kect Construction Corp. NY State Spec. Item Material Description  PRICE PER TON
Furnished -~ Delivered and | P.O. Box 201 402-128102 Type 12.5MM Superpave Top $87.10
Laid in Place Patterson, NY 12562

402-198901 Type 19.0 MM Superpave Binder $88.20
BASE PRICE: $471.00 /per ton FOB New Jersey Terminals

NOTE: Price Adjustment: = % of asphalt (New average FOB terminal
price) $471.00 (Base Average). Documentation of the price of asphalt
will be submitted with invoice.

FOB Location: Carmel Blacktop
Intercounty Paving Co., Inc. NY State Spec. Item Material Description  PRICE PER TON

P.O. Box 360 402-128102 Type 12.5MM Superpave Top $88.40
Carmel, NY 10512

402-198901 Type 19.0 MM Superpave Binder $88.40
BASE PRICE: $471.00 /per ton FOB New Jersey Terminals
NOTE: Price Adjustment: = % of asphalt (New average FOB terminal
price) $ 471.00 (Base Average). Documentation of the price of asphalt

will be submitted with invoice.

FOB Location: Thalle Industries

Clove Excavators, Inc. NY State Spec. Item Material Description  PRICE PER TON
212 Van Wagner Rd. 402-128102 Type 12.5MM Superpave Top $84.00
Poughkeepsie, NY 12603

402-198901 Type 19.0 MM Superpave Binder $84.00
BASE PRICE: $471.00 /per ton FOB New Jersey Terminals
NOTE: Price Adjustment: = 7.2% of asphalt (New average FOB terminal
price) $ 0 (Base Average). Documentation of the price of asphalt will be

submitted with invoice.

FOB Location: Thalle Industries

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 1



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

#2 Bituminous Concrete - FOB | Peckham Materials Corp. NY State Spec. Item Material Description  PRICE PER TON
172 Prospect Hill Rd. FOB
Brewster, NY 10509 402-128102 Type 12.5MM Superpave Top $74.00

402-198901 Type 19.0 MM Superpave Binder  $74.00
BASE PRICE: $471.00 /per ton FOB New York Terminals
NOTE: Price Adjustment: = % of asphalt (New average FOB terminal
price) $471.00 (Base Average). Documentation of the price of asphalt

will be submitted with invoice.

FOB Location: Rte. 6, Carmel, NY

Thalle Industries Inc. NY State Spec. Item Material Description  PRICE PER TON
172 Route 9 FOB
Fishkill, NY 12524 402-128102 Type 12.5MM Superpave Top $70.00

402-198901 Type 19.0 MM Superpave Binder  $68.00
BASE PRICE: $471.00 /per ton FOB New Jersey Terminals
NOTE: Price Adjustment: = % of asphalt (New average FOB terminal
price) $471.00 (Base Average). Documentation of the price of asphalt

will be submitted with invoice.

FOB Location: 172 Rte 9, Fishkill, NY

Tara/ 2021 HWY Matgrial Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 2



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS — 2021 PROPOSALS

#3 Calcium Chloride - Chemung Supply Corp. FOB DELIVERED
Delivered P.O. Box 527 $ $488.00 per ton
Elmira, NY 14902 $12.20 per 50 1Ib bag

FOB Location:

FOB DELIVERED
$ $ /gallon
FOB Location:

FOB DELIVERED
$ /ton $ /ton
% ) $ )
FOB Location:

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 3



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

#4 Liquid Melting Agent — Soil | Reed Systems Ltd. Delivered
Stabilizer - Delivered 17 Edwards Place
Ellenville, NY 12428 $1.07/gal. Winter Calcium Chloride

$ /gal Summer Calcium Chloride
$ /egal Magnesium Chloride

FOB Location:
Gorman Bros., Inc. Delivered
200 Church Street
Albany, NY 12202 $1.10 /gal. Winter Calcium Chloride

$1.10/gal. Summer Calcium Chloride
$ /gal Magnesium Chloride

FOB Location:

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 4



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

#5 #2 Fuel Qil — Delivered Downey Energy New York Harbor Price: $137.99
P.0O. Box 306
Cold Spring, NY 10516 Bidder Transportation: ~ $0.04

Total Bid Price: $141.99

Mirabito Holdings, Inc. New York Harbor Price: $1.3439
d/b/a Mirabito Energy Prod.
The Metrocenter Bidder Transportation:  $ 0.1336
49 Court Street
P.O. Box 5306 Total Bid Price: $ 1.4775

Binghamton, NY 13902

New York Harbor Price; $
Bidder Transportation:  §

Total Bid Price: $

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 5



#6 Bank Run / Fill / Tailings —
FOB & Delivered

HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

Red Wing Properties, Inc.
P.O. Box 408
Stormville, NY 12582

Bank Run

FOB Delivered

$20.00/ton $28.00/ton

Fill

FOB Delivered

$8.00/ton $16.00/ton

Tailings

FOB Delivered
$ $

FOB Location: 2332 Rte 82, Billings, NY 12510

Thalle Industries, Inc.
172 Route 9
Fishkill, NY 12524

Bank Run

FOB Delivered
$ $

Fill

FOB Delivered
$13.50/ton $18.50/ton
Tailings

FOB Delivered
$ $

FOB Location: 172 Rte 9, Fishkill, NY 12524

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet




#7 | Installation of Guide Rail

Material

HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS — 2021 PROPOSALS

' Chemung Supply Corp.

and Furnishing of Guide Rail | P.O. Box 527

Elmira, NY 14902

1) Complete Layout and Installation of Guide Rail & Posts
as per NY State Specs. Bid only Galvanized
2) Corrugated beam type Guide Rail — Punched 6°3”
3) Corrugated beam type Guide Rail — Punched 6°3”
Curved to special radius:
- Curved to 50 ft. radius and up
- Curved 40 to 50 ft. radius
- Curved 30 to 39 ft. radius
- Curved 20 to 29 ft. radius
4) Corrugated beam type Guide Rail — 13” 6 %2 Length
{Shop curved rail) (Approach & Terminal) (Rotation 90)
5) 3” x 2 3/8” I Intermediate Guide Rail Posts — 5°3” Length
6) Flared Type Terminal Sections 12 Gauge
7) Wrap-around type Terminal Sections 12 Gauge
8) Concrete anchor unit with all necessary hardware
9) Galvanized splice bolts 1-1/4” x 5/8”
10) Galvanized Post Bolts 2” x 1-3/4”* w/washer and nuts
11) Galvanized Post Bolts 2” x 5/8”
12) Galvanized Support Bolts %” x 1-1/2”, 2 mus, no washers
13) 6” x 6” x 24” Box Beam Type Guide Rail
include Shelf Angle, Splice Plates and Nuts and Bolts
14) 6” x 6” Box Beam Type Guide Rail Curved
to Special Radius

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet

$9.95 /Lin.Ft.

$99.50 /ea.

$125.00 /ea.
$125.00/ea.
$128.00/ea.
$133.00/ea.
$142.00/ea.

$51.50/ea.
$32.00/ea.
$51.00/ea.
$515.00/ea.
$1.00/ea.
$1.00/ea.
$1.00/ea.
$1.00/ea.
$44.00/Lin.Ft.

$37.00/Lin.Ft.




HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

15) 6” x 6” Beam Type Guide Rail Shop Cuts $58.00/Lin.Ft.
and Mitered Curved Rail

16) 6 x 6” Box Beam Guide Rail End Section $375.00/ea.

17) 3” I Beam Guide Rail Posts 5°3” long, $51.50/ea.
Intermediate Type Post for Box Beam Rail

18) 3” I Beam Guide Rail Posts 3’8 long, $49.00/ea.
End Type for Box Beam Rail

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submissicn Tracking Sheet [



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

#8 Washed Crushed Stone — Putnam Materials Corp. | FOB Delivered
FOB & Delivered 172 Prospect Hill Road
Brewster, NY 10509 1%” - $19.50 /ton $28.00/ton
¥ - $19.50/ton $28.00/ton
n” - $19.50/ton $28.00/ton
3/8” - 3 $ /ton
Y - % $ /ton
38" —%" - § $§ /ton

FOB Location: Route 311, Patterson, NY

Washed Crushed Stone — Red Wing Properties,Inc. | FOB Delivered
FOB & Delivered P.O. Box 408
Stormville, NY 12582 14” - $20.00/ton $28.00/ton
¥ - $20.00/ton $28.00/ton
wn” - §
3/8" - §$20.00/ton $28.00/ton
Ve - §
31" - §
FOB Location:

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet Q



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

#8 Washed Crushed Stone —
FOB & Delivered (cont’d)

Thalle Industries, Inc.
172 Route 9
Fishkill, NY 12524

FOB Delivered
LbER

1%” - $19.50/ton ﬁ_MMMwnm $24.50/ton
b/ - $19.00/ton $24.00/ton
w” - $19.00/ton $24.00/ton
3/8” - $19.00/ton $24.00/ton
/4 - $20.00/ton $25.00/ton
3/87—1%” - $19.00/ton $24.00/ton

FOB Location: 172 Rte 9, Fishkill, NY

FOB Delivered
1% - 8

Y - $

AL -

8 - 8§

VAL -

38— 7 -

FOB Location:

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet

10




HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

FOB Location

#9 Mifg’d. Crushed Item 4 - Harold Lyons & Sons FOB Delivered
FOB & Delivered 3175 Route 9
Cold Spring, NY 10516 | »” $17.45/ton
_b e _ W &\m.{ 7 $17.45/ton
1” $17.45/ton
FOB Location:
Putnam Materials Corp. FOB Delivered
172 Prospect Hill Road
Brewster, NY 10509 wn"s
34" $14.75/ton $23.00/ton
1” $14.75/ton $23.00/ton
FOB Location:
Thalle Industries Inc. FOB Delivered
172 Route 9
Fishkill, NY 12524 14” $14.00/ton $19.00/ton
¥? $14.00/ton $19.00/ton
Cob
: 1” $14.00/ton $19.00/ton

: 172 Rte. 9, Fishkill, NY

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet

11




HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS — 2021 PROPOSALS

#10 | Screened ltem 4 — Harold Lyons & Sons FOB Delivered
Delivered and FOB 3175 Route 9
Cold Spring, NY 10516 n”? $17.45/ton
¥~ $17.45/ton
!V AN 1” $17.45/ton
FOB Location:
Red Wing Properties, Inc. FOB Delivered
P.O. Box 408
Stormville, NY 12582 n” $
%” $25.00/ton $33.00/ton
1”7 $23.00/ton $31.00/ton

FOB Location: 2332 Rte 82, Billings, NY

Thalle Industries Inc. FOB Delivered
172 Route 9
Fishkill, NY 12524 %" $14.00/ton $19.00/ton
4" $14.00/ton $19.00/ton
Fo®
\\\ 1” $14.00/ton $19.00/ton

FOB Location: 172 Rte 9, Fishkill, NY

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 12



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

Brewster, NY 10509

#11 | NYSDOT ITEM 203.07 Harold Lyons & Sons FOB Delivered
Select Granular Fill - 3175 Route 9 $ $17.45/ton
Delivered and FOB Cold Spring, NY 10516

. FOB Location:
/\HVN [ige ! &\
Putnam Materials Corp FOB Delivered
172 Prospect Hiil Road $13.00/ton $21.25/ton

FOB Location: Rte 311, Patterson, NY

Thalle Industries, Inc. FOB njappesn por Delivered
172 Route 9 $14.00/ton o Distacge  $19.00/ton
Fishkill, NY 12524

=ylls) FOB Location: 172 Rte 9, Fishill, NY

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet

13




HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS — 2021 PROPOSALS

#12 | Stone Fillings -FOB & Putnam Materials Corp. FOB Delivered
Delivered 172 Prospect Hill Road Fine Stone
Brewster, NY 10509 Light Stone $21.00/ton 830.00’ton
Medium Stone $24.00/ton $36.00/ton
Heavy Stone $26.00/ton $38.00/ton
FOB Location: Rte 311, Patterson, NY
Thalle Industries, Inc. FOB Delivered
172 Route 9 Fine Stone $22.00/ton $27.00/ton
Fishkill NY 12524 Light Stone $22.00/ton®¥:dFce  $27.00/ton
Medium Stone $35.00/ton $45.00/ton
Heavy Stone $50.00/ton $60.00/ton
FOB Location: 172 Rte 9, Fishkill, NY
FOB Delivered
Fine Stone
Light Stone $
Medium Stone $
Heavy Stone $
FOB Location:
FOB Delivered
Fine Stone $
Light Stone $
Medium Stone $
Heavy Stone $
FOB Location:

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet

14




HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

#13 | Sand for Snow and lce Harold Lyons & Sons, Inc. FOB Delivered
Control - FOB & Uo_ri_.na 3175 Route 9 $19.50/ton

Cold Spring, NY 10516

FOB Location;

N .

Thalle Industries, Inc. FOB ‘Delivefed
172 Route 9 $15.00/ton .00/ton
Fishkill, NY 12524 /

FOB Location: 172 Rte, 9, Fishkill, NY
Red Wing Properties, Inc. FOB Delivered
P.O. Box 408 $16.00/ton $20.00/ton
Stormville, NY 12582

FOB Location;

FOB Delivered

$ $

FOB Location:

FOB Delivered

$ $

FOB Location;

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet

15




HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

#14 | Curb Mix with RAP FOB DELIVERED
$ /ton (Based on ~=-r=x===-- -- index of $--------emeeemm- )
FOB Location:
FOB DELIVERED
$ /ton (Based on -==-----——--- index of §-----------eene- )
FOB Location:
FOB DELIVERED
$ /ton (Based on --------~---- index of $---m-mmecmmea )
FOB Location:
FOB DELIVERED
$ /ton (Based on ------------- index of $----memmemeneeev )
FOB Location:

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 16



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

#15 | Stone Screenings -FOB & Harold Lyons & Sons, Inc. FOB Delivered
Delivered 3175 Route 9 $17.45/ton
Cold Spring, NY 10516
e lwely
A FOB Location:
Thalle Industries, Inc. FOB Delivered
172 Route 9 $14.25/ton $19.25/ton

Fishkill, NY 12524

Fob

FOB Location: 172 Route 9, Fishkill, NY

FOB Delivered
$ $

FOB Location:

FOB Delivered
$ $

FOB Location;

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 17



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS -2021 PROPOSALS

#16 | Smooth Bore Corrugated | Chemung Supply Corp. | Pipe (Per Linear Foot) FOB . Delivered
Polyethylene Solid Pipe— | P.O. Box 527 | |
Delivered (cont’d) Elmira, NY 14902 4” under drain $.52 $.52
4” solid or perforated $1.10 _ $1.10
6” solid or perforated $2.30 $2.30
_ 8” solid or perforated $3.58 $3.58
12” diameter $5.52 $5.52
| 15” diameter §7.28 $7.28
7 18” diameter $10.60 $10.60
24” diameter $16.90 $16.90
| 30” diameter $27.10 $27.10
| 36” diameter $34.80 $34.80
. 48” diameter $57.40 $57.40
| BANDS (EACH)
| 4” diameter $2.05 $2.05
6” diameter $4.79 $4.79
7 8” diameter $6.55 $6.55
12” diameter $10.15 $10.15
_ 15” diameter $16.95 $16.95
18” diameter $28.85 $28.85
| 24” diameter $40.99 $40.99
30” diameter $96.38 $96.38
36” diameter $133.32 $133.32
48” diameter $228.64 $228.64

Tara/ 2021 HWY Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 19



HIGHWAY MATERIALS BIDS - 2021 PROPOSALS

Smooth Bore Corrugated Expanded Supply Products, Inc. | Pipe (Per Linear Foot) FOB Delivered
Polyethylene Solid Pipe - 3330 Route 9
| Delivered Cold Spring, NY 10516 4” under drain $.52 $.52
4” solid or perforated $1.10 $1.10
6” solid or perforated $2.30 $2.30
8” solid or perforated $3.58 $3.58
_ 12” diameter $5.52 $5.52
15” diameter $7.28 $7.28
18” diameter $10.60 $10.60
24” diameter $16.90 $16.90
30” diameter $27.10 $27.10
36” diameter $34.80 $34.80
48” diameter $57.40 $57.40
BANDS (EACH)
4” diameter $2.05 $2.05 _
6” diameter $4.79 $4.79
8” diameter $6.55 $6.55
12” diameter $10.15 $10.15
| 15” diameter $16.95 $16.95
18” diameter $28.85 $28.85
_ 24” diameter $40.99 $40.99
_ 30” diameter $96.38 $96.38
36” diameter $133.32 $133.32
_ 48” diameter $228.64 $228.64
_
_
_

Tara/ 2021 HW'Y Material Bid-Submission Tracking Sheet 18



RESOLUTION #-2020

The following Resolution was presented by ~,seconded by _
unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the return of any remaining Cash
Performance Bond for Vamco Realty of Peekskill.

and



Town of Philipstown
Planning Board
238 Main Street, PO Box 155
Cold Spring, NY 10516

Office (845) 265- 5202  Fax (845) 265-2687

MEMORANDUM
Dec 1, 2020

ATTN: RICHARD SHEA

Town Board of Town of Philipstown
238 Main Street

P. O. Box 155 :

Cold Spring, New York 10516

Re: Release of funds for Vamco Realty of Peekskill TM#27.16-1-16

Dear Supervisor Shea:

At the November 19th, 2020 Town Planning Board meeting a motion was made by Peter Lewis to okay the
return of the Cash Performance Bond and Dennis Gagnon seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

I am requesting that any remaining Cash Performance Bond for processing and consultants' fees being held
by the Town should be released back to the applicant at this time.

Very truly yours.

Kelly MacIntrye
Planning Secretary



RESOLUTION #-2020

The following Resolution was presented by , seconded by
and unanimously carried,;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the following one (1) proposed change
order for the Town Hall renovations in the total amount of $18,475.00:

1) Copper Gutters & Leaders — $18,475.00 (PVS Construction)



IRC\VS

CONSTRUCTICON
LicensediBondedsinsured

Project: Philipstown Town Hall Renovations

Job No.:19-015 PCO No.: 016 Owner CO No.:_
Description of PCO: Copper Gutters and Leaders
PVS Construction Labor Amaunt
4 days 2 carpenter 58,000.00

Materials/Equip
Copper gutter and Accessories

57,500.00
OverheadandProfit—15% 1$2.325.00
Total PVS Work [617,825.00
SUBCONTRACTORCHANGES

Arnount
Total Subcontractor G000
OverheadandProfit—15% S000
Bonds and Insurances SE50 00
Total Job : 418,475 00




RESOLUTION #-2020

The following Resolution was presented by , seconded by

and unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the following one (1) proposed change
order for the Town Hall renovations in the total amount of $10,267.00:

1) Elevator Battery Backup — $10,267.00 (PVS Construction)



RP\Vs

CONSTRUCTION
LicensedsBonded:Insured

Project: Philipstown Town Hall Renovations

Job No.:19-015 PCO No.: 017 Owner CO No.:_
Description of PCO: Elevator Battery Back Up
PVS Construction Labor [Amaunt

50,000.00
Materials/Equip

$0.00

OverheadandProfit—15% 1 40.00
Total PVS Work s -
SUBCONTRACTORCHANGES

Amaunt
Thyssen Krupp 58,650.00
Total Subcontractor 5$8,650.00
Overhead and Profit-15% 51,297 00
Bonds and Insurances $320.00
Total Job : $10,267 00




RESOLUTION #-2020

The following Resolution was presented by , seconded by

and unanimously carried,

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the following one (1) proposed change
order for the Town Hall renovations in the total amount of $4,610.00:

1) Concrete Entry Sidewalk — $4,610.00 (PVS Construction)



hPVs

CONSTRUCUICOMN
LicensedsBondediinsured

Project: Philipstown Town Hall Renovations

Job Ne.:19-015 PCO No.: 018 Owner CO No.;_
Description of PCO: Concrete Entry Sidewalk
PVS Construction Labor Amount
1 Laborer 2 Masons 1 Days $3,000.00
Materials/Equip
Concrete and Mesh $450.00
OverheadandProfit—15% L4585 00
Total PVS Work SO0
SUBCONTRACTORCHANGES
Amaunt
50.00
Total Subcontractor 44,485.00
Overhead and Profit-15% S000
Bonds and Insurances 5125 00
Total Job : 44 61000




RESOLUTION # - 2020

The following Resolution was presented by , seconded by and
unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby authorizes Supervisor Shea to sign a filming permit
for North Six (GAP Teen Spring 2021 project), event to begin December 2™ through December
3% 2020 at 40 High Ridge Road, Garrison.



H"M\/ ase  See endloked d%s é‘f
Fwio (9{"’— and.  Two AA‘gereNt' QBQI‘MA‘\-S per
W,Cc)’\ |‘¢ nete . —ﬂa_x\ﬁ &:‘))

A

TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
VEMEa S P.O.Bax IS5 Cold Spring. NY 10516

RICHARD SHEA, SUPERVISOR, (845) 245-3129

(Name of Company and for Individual)
159 Bieecker Sireet storefront

{Street Address)
New York NY 10012 212 463 7227
{City} (State) (2ip) {Telephone)

Contact Information:

Please supply the name, address and cell number of the personis) who will be available twenty-
four hours/day during the activity. This person should have control and responsibility for the direction
of all participants | the permitted activity and for the property for which the activity is permitted.

Lara DifFiore
{Name of Individual)
159 Bleecker Street storefront
{Street Address}
_ New York | NY 10012 646 431 4483
(City) {State) (Zip) (Telephone)

tf applicant is not owner or tenant 1 possession of property where filming Is to take place, supply owner
information below:

Lea - 8K 246173

{Owner of Propérty) {Cell Number)

Filming Format: Student__ Public Service, Teaching or Not-for-profit__ Agency Advertising
Feature Film, TV or Video__ Private Property__ Public Property

-



TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN

238 Main St.  P.O. Box 155 Cold Spring, NY 10516
RICHARD SHEA, SUPERVISOR (845) 265-3329

JUDITH FARRELL, COUNCILWOMAN
Project Name:___Gap Teen Spring 2021
(Name of person or entity being filmed)
Location;___ 40 High Ridge Rd, Garrison, NY 10524
Filming Date{s)_Dec 2, Dec 3 Hours:_7am - 7pm

Description of ali vehicles, equipment, props and sets to be used in connection with filming;
Vehicles: S Cube Trucks, 3 Sprinter vans, 15 personal cars

Equipment: __Standard lighting and grip. HMI

Props:__Couches, chairs, basic home props

Sets: nla

Outdoor lighting:__Maybe one hmi

Attach child performer permit(s) for each performer under 18 years of age.



TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN

238 Main St.  P.0.Box 155 Cold Spring, NY 10516

RICHARD SHEA, SUPERVISOR (845) 265-3329
TINA M. MERANDO JOHN VAN TASSEL, COUNCILMAN
TOWN CLERK AND TAX COLLECTOR MICHAEL LEONARD, COUNCILMAN

ROBERT FLAHERTY, COUNCILMAN
JUDITH FARRELL, COUNCILWOMAN

Applicant; Lara DiFiore c/o North Six Date: 14/23/20
Signed by: (/k"@“
Title:__Production Manager

The Owner hereby consents to this application and the filming to be done hereunder:
pate: 11/23/20

(Signature of Owner)

Relegse and indemnity of Liability

In consideration of permission granted by the Town of Philipstown for the use of the above Filming
Permit:

The undersigned applicant hereby releases from liability, absolves and ogrees to defend,
indemnify and hold harmiess the Town of Philipstown, its officers, officials, employees, agents
and volunteers, from against any and all claims, recoveries, judgements and causes of oction
whatsoever arising out of the grant of this filming permit. If, as a result of the grant of this
filming permit, damage is sustained to any

property owned by the Town of Philipstown, the undersigned permit holder agrees to
relmburse to the Tow of Philipstown the foir market value of any repair to, or replacement

of such property.
FOR OFFICE USE:
FILMING PERMIY
Approved / Approved with special conditions___

Commencement date: / Z

/emed
i Explratlon date: / 21 -

Town Supervisor’s signature,




RESOLUTION # - 2020

The following Resolution was presented by , seconded by and
unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby authorizes Supervisor Shea to sign a filming permit
for Integrated Film Industries (Teen Gap 2 project), event to take place December 4t 2020 at 40
High Ridge Road, Garrison.



TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN

238Main 8t P.O.Box 155  Cold Spring, NY 10516

RICHARD SHEA, SUPERVISOR (845)265-3329
JOHN VAN TASSEL, COUNCEMAN
MICHAEL LEONARD, COUNCILMAN
ROBERT FLAHERTY, COUNCILMAN
JUDITH FARRELL, COUNCILWOMAN
Applicant; Integrated Fiim Industries
{Name of Company and /or Individual)
73 Devoe Strest #3L
Add
(Street Address) Brooklyn, NY 11211
(City) {State) (Zip) {Telephone)
Contact information:

Please supply the name, address and cell number of the person{s) who will be available twenty-
four hours/day during the activity. This person should have control and responsibility for the direction
of all participants | the permitted activity and for the property for which the activity is permitted.

Jenny Cadenillas (production supervisor) 323.386.4057

(Name of individual)
. Same As Above
{Street Address)
{City) {State) {Zip) {Telephone)

If applicant is not owner or tenant | possession of property where filming is to take place, supply owner
Information below:

Shea Spencer 646.246.1239

{Owner of Property) {Signature) . {Cell Number)

Filming Format: Student__ Public Service, Teaching or Not-for-profit__ Agency Advertising__
Feature Film, TV or Video X Private Property__ Public Property




TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
238MainSt.  P.0.Box 155 Cold Spring, NY 10516

RiICHARD SHEA, SUPERVISOR (845) 265-3329

JUDITH FARRELL, COUNCH, WOMAN
Teen Gap 2 - #20002
Project Name:
{Name of parson or entity being filmed)
Location: 40 High Ridge Rd. Garrison, NY 10524
Filming Date(s) 12/04/2020 Hours: ___Tadp

Description of all vehicles, equipment, props and sets to be used in connection with filming:

Vehicles: 3 14ft Cube Trucks, 2 - 15pass Vans, 1 - Motorhome (size TBD)

' Standard Package- a few canister lights for lighting, & couple of light diffusers,
Equipment; Camera and some lens cases, chalrs and tables, catering etc

Props: Ciothing and some light fumBRure

Sets: Using the homsasdw?et._

Outdoor lighting: We wilf have some of our lights being used from outside the home pointing into the homes windows

Attach child performer permit{s) for each performer under 18 years of age.

2-



TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN

238Main 8t P.O.Box 155 Cold Spring, NV 10516

RICHARD SHEA, SUPERVISOR (845)265-3329

TINA M. MERANDO JOHN VAN TASSEL, COUNCILMAN

TOWN CLERK AND TAX COLLECTOR MICHAEL LEONARD, COUNCILMAN
ROBERT FLAHERTY, COUNCILMAN
JUDITH PARRELL, COUNCILWOMAN

Applicant;__INtegrated Film Industires pate: 11723/2020

signed by: Jenny Cadeniilas

Title: Production Supervisor

The M\@xreby TWM and the fliming to be done hereunder:
Xl ' pate; 11/23/2020
a/(Sthurc of Owner)

in consideration of permission granted by the Town of Philipstown for the use of the above Filming
Permit:

The undersigned applicant hereby relecses from liability, absolves and agrees to defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Philipstown, Its officers, officiols, employees, agents
and volunteers, from against any and oll claims, recoveries, judgements and causes of action
whatsoever arising out of the grant of this filming permit. If, as a result of the grant of this
filming permit, damage Is sustoined to any

property owned by the Town of Philipstown, the undersigned permit hoider agrees to
reimburse to the Tow of Philipstown the fair market value of any repair to, or replacement

of such property.
FOR OFFICE USE:
. FILMING PERMIT
Approvedz Approved with special conditions___ Denled

Commencement date: ‘ 7 ’7/4» ' Expiration date:é - 2 :é ?’ép f/ «X /
Town Supervisor's signature M

-3-




RESOLUTION EXTENDING MORATORIUM

WHEREAS, heretofore the Town Board adopted a local law entitled: "A Local Law
establishing a six (6) month moratorium on the submission and processing of applications for
Land Use Approvals for new land use development on properties located on Upland Drive,
Ridge Road and Cliffside Court within the Town of Philipstown"; and

WHEREAS, the Local Law enacting the moratorium provided that the said moratorium
may be extended by two (2) additional periods of up to six (6) months each by resolution of the
Town Board upon a finding of need for such extension(s); and

WHEREAS, the said moratorium will expire on December 4, 2020, and

WHEREAS, the Town Board has not yet completed the process of reviewing the
applicable zoning and enacting such changes to the land use regulations as it may find to be
appropriate;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

That the Town Board hereby extends the moratorium on the submission and processing
of applications for Land Use Approvals for new land use development on properties located on
Upland Drive, Ridge Road and Cliffside Court within the Town of Philipstown for a period of
six {6) months to June 4, 2021.

presented the foregoing resolution which was

seconded by ,

Judith Farrell, Councilwoman, voting

John VanTassel, Councilman, voting

Robert Flaherty, Councilman, voting

Michael Leonard, Councilman, voting

Richard Shea, Supervisor, voting




RESOLUTION # - 2020

The following Resolution was presented by , seconded by and
unanimously cartied;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby accepts the proposal from Marc’s Landscaping &
Outdoor Living, LLC for 2020-2021 snow shoveling and ice melt application as presented.

10



Marc’s Landscaping & Outdoor Living, LLC
P.O. Box 346 Cold Spring, N.Y. 10516
Telephone: (845) 206 — 2527  Office: {845) 590 — 5283

Email: memairucha@vahto. com

November 16, 2020

Town of Philipstown

238 Main Street

P.O. Box 155

Cold Spring, N.Y. 10516

ATTN: John VanTassel

RE: 2020-2021 Snow Shoveling & lce Meit Application Guotes

Tovs of Philipstown Old VW Building

Shovel Walkways & Apply ice Melt $85.00 each time {up to 6”/over 6” additional chg.}
Town of Philipstown Town Hall

Shovel Walkways & Apply Ice ivielt $70.00 each time (up to 6”/over 6” additional chg.)
Town of Philipstown Bullcing Dept.

Shovel Walkways & Apply Ice Melt $75.00 each time (up to 6”/over 6” additional chg.}
Town of Philipstown Courthouse

Shovel Walkways & Apply lce Melt $75.00 each time {up to 6”/over 6” additional chg.)

LANDSCAPE & HARDSCAPE DESIGH, INSTALLATION & MAINTENANCE
LICEMSED & INSURED Puznam Licanse HPC3700



RESOLUTION # - 2020

The following Resolution was presented by , seconded by

unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby authorizes Robert Cinque to sign the proposed
Consent Order and Judgement re: Garewal vs. Town of Philipstown.

and

t\



RESOLUTION #2020

The following Resolution was presented by _, seconded by and
unanimously carried;

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby authorizes Town Clerk Percacciolo to advertise for
the position of Clerk to the Special Boards (ZBA, PB &CB) to begin January 1, 2021.



DRAFT

Philipstown Comprehensive Plan

Submitted to the Town Board

December 3, 2020

15



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INtroduction .....cccccemmemimivnsseremmsessssssnnnnsansnnnes PN - S page 2
About PhilipStOWN.......ccoviimimmmimisienressssemsemnses e ssansnssssnsmsmesssansansneanmse page 2
Key ISSU@S...uuumuummemmeneemsssnnsanareneunress resnsnnnsanasssansnsnsnnnnnansannsnsasessansen snae page 3
OUur COMMUNItY ViSiON.iuiesnemememmemssusimnsminmnmsssssensssssmsssasssstess snssnsnnnensns page 5
How the New Plan Was WritteN....c...cseramiminmnssssssssssnasanssnsssscosenssenmnnanaasnns: page 5
How the Plan is Structured........cccoummmmiiincnnsnenseesnimamsmnosnsssrsnsansmnnne page 6
Planning Principle I: Livable Built Environment........ccccccicissimnmasssenmmmmnan.s. page 8
GOAL 1: SUSTAIN OUR RURAL AND HISTORIC CHARACTER.+-cucescmsnissncnscsains page 8
GOAL 2: PROVIDE A WIDE RANGE OF HOUSING.......ccsesmssssssnsnssansssnsnncasass page 10
GOAL 3: DEVELOP AN INTEGRATED TRANSPORTATION PLAN......cccceceenseen. page 11
GOAL 4: EMBRACE "SMART GROWTH” PLANNING PRINCIPLES.......ccccccsnnncPage 13
Planning Principle Il: Harmony with Nature....ccciccmiccmnccmnnicesscncminnnmnnananenee: page 14
GOAL 5: PROTE R NATURAL RESOURCES......cccucomssmnnssnemssnsnnmsnnmnnnass page 14
Planning Principle lll: Resilient ECONOMY......cccconecismmimmensrseerieassnnsnsinsnssssssciense page 17
GOAL 6: SEEK A FAIR AND BALANCED TAX STRATEGY «uecneerensnsmnssseassssannes page 17
GOAL 7: PURSUE A SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY .euseeusse page 19
GOAL 8: PROMOTE USE OF AGRICULTURAL LAND FOR FARMING.............. page 20
Planning Principle IV: Healthy COMMUNItY.....cociieccninnnsecsnsecssssamannsssanns page 22
GOAL 9: STRENGTHEN OUR TOWN-WIDE SENSE OF COMMUNITY ...........«. page 22
GOAL 10: EXPAND QUR RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES......cosnammemnenanassns page 23
GOAL 11: ENSURE THAT RESIDENTS CAN ENJOY GOOD HEALTH.........ccass0.- page 24
Planning Principle V: Responsible RegionalisSm......cccccesmiressmessnmiemmsascasmnesceasens page 27
GOAL 12: PURSUE PARTNERSHIPS WITH NEIGHBORING MUNICIPALITIES...page 27
Planning Principle VI: Interwoven EQUIty.........couvmisscmcrnssnnionscsnsnncnssns voncen. page 28

GOAL 13: ENSURE THAT THE LAWS OF THE TOWN AND THE GOALS OF THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ARE CONSISTENT .uuueasseseennsansmsmnsannsnastsesassunnancies page 28




COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 11/30/20 DRAFT

INTRODUCTION

Philipstown's Comprehensive Plan is a framework for the future. The political, social, and
environmental shifts that have taken place since the 2006 adoption of our cuirent
Comprehensive Plan have impacted our locat economy and altered the Town’s planning
priorities. In 2017, the Town appointed a Comprehensive Plan Update Committee (CPUC)} and this
draft reflects their work. The new Comprehensive Plan sets forth goals, strategies, and action items
that will enable Philipstown to navigate these shifts and continue to thrive as a desirable place to live,
work, and play for the next 10 years.

About Philipstown

The Town of Philipstown is a 51.5 square mile suburban community in western Putnam County with a
population of just under 10,000 people. Our defining and valued attributes are: access to the
Hudson River, a sense of history, an extensive parkland and open space network, excellent
schools, active nonprofits, two charming villages, a central location in the New York
metropolitan region and the Hudson Valley, and a long tradition of community involvement.

The residents of Philipstown have in recent years expressed their ideas about the future of the Town
through several community information-gathering initiatives. These initiatives included a series of 2016
Community Conversations followed by a Community Survey organized by the Desmond Fish Public
Library; a series of public forums organized by the Ecological Citizens Project (ECP), known as the
Philipstown Community Congress, leading to a Community Vote in 2017 in which over 750 ballots
were cast; and an innovative community inventory of greenhouse gas emissions organized by the ECP

and spearheaded by the Philipstown Climate Smart Communities Task Force in 2019-2020.

Acknowledging the need to become a more resilient community in the face of growing climate change
concerns in the 2006 Comprehensive Plan, public officials in Philipstown voted to join New York
State’s Climate Smart Communities initiative in June 2017, Inspired by the actions of our enlightened
political leaders and the activism of volunteers involved in “Climate Smart Philipstown” and other
concerned citizens and organizations, including the CPUC, we have emerged as a national local
Leader in the fight against climate change in supporting the goal of reaching 100% community
carbon neutrality by 2040.



The Town of Philipstown also adopted a "Complete Streets” policy in February 2020. This approach to
mobility planning attempts to ensure that people of all ages and abilities are able to move around
their communities safely and easily. We recognize that transportation infrastructure should
accommodate a range of transportation modes such as biking, walking, driving and public

transportation.

Key Issues:

The Comprehensive Plan sets forth our community's vision for preserving the Town's strengths and
addressing its future needs. It is a policy document that is meant to be referred to often by all
stakeholders interested in maintaining a high quality of life in Philipstown.

The issues we face in Philipstown today are at once very similar to and also very different from those
we faced in 2006. Today, the preservation of the Town’s residential character and natural
condition are still of utmost importance, as is the protection of the Town's environmental features,
especially the quality of our water. We also face the same challenges in meeting the housing
needs of changing demographics, including seniors, workforce employees, and young families.
Meanwhile, a host of new challenges have appeared over the last 15 years that have changed the way
land use and community planning must be approached, including the great uncertainty introduced
into our town'’s future by the COVID-19 outbreak.

We don't yet know if the spike in relocations of people leaving New York City, brought on by the
pandemic, will continue after the virus is controlled. We also don't know whether working and
schooling from home will become a permanent way of life in Philipstown. But we do know that the
vast supply of products available, with the convenience of shopping from home, has consumers
choosing to shop online rather than in-perscn with increasing frequency. As a result, e-commerce is
transforming the American “downtown” and affecting the actions local businesses must take to
remain relevant and successful in this new market. At the same time, as our Millennials’ economic
self-sufficiency increases and our Baby Boomers age, these populations are becoming more
interested in amenities, housing and service options that are accessible without a personal vehicle or
through public transit. We also recognize a trend towards introducing healthy living and active
lifestyles into everyday actions and a “health-in-all-policies" approach to planning.



The pursuit of an active lifestyle and the beauty and majesty of the Hudson Highlands in Philipstown
have produced an unexpected challenge to our quality of life in recent years. Pedestrian safety and
crowd management issues have arisen along Route 9D and in the Villages brought on by an increase
in the number of visitors to certain hiking trails (most notably Breakneck Ridge). The Hudson
Highlands Fjord Trail project, which is expected to be completed over the course of this planning
period, is designed as a comprehensive congestion-management initiative in response to these
challenges, but the expectation of a continued increase in the numbers of visitors will make the
evolution of a visitor-management strategy—we want to maximize the economic benefits of
tourism without increasing the risk to our public safety—a planning priority for years to come.

In addition, even in Philipstown, which is relatively free of crime and security threats, there are two
great crises that we see across the country and here at home: drugs and climate change. They
must be considered in community planning. As a community, we have recognized the increase in drug
abuse, and we support the Town's continued eagerness to mitigate it. Philipstown has also developed
more robust environmental disaster and adaptation plans to combat increasingly frequent and
intense weather events. Our increasingly sophisticated and comprehensive understanding of global
climate change has emboldened Philipstown to take action to curb air emissions, implement
sustainability measures in Town operations, and encourage more responsible resident behavior.

Our Community Vision

Although nearly 15 years have passed since the adoption of the 2006 Comprehensive Plan,
Philipstown remains remarkably unchanged in many respects. Most notably, our Town has retained
its bucolic feel, Low-density residential character and peaceful sense of place and connection.
Cold Spring serves as the Town’'s main center of retail activity and community gathering. The
preservation of these aspects of Philipstown remains the focus of the Comprehensive Plan. The Plan
intends to combine best practices in sustainable planning with community input to inform policies
that will preserve these enviable assets for generations to come.

Specifically, the Plan re-establishes goals to develop a variety of housing types at various price points
in locations that have the infrastructure and amenities to support them. It also acknowledges that
large-scale residential development of any kind faces a myriad of challenges, including significant
environmental constraints (such as sensitive wetlands and wetland buffers, steep slopes, and public
drinking water watersheds and aquifers) and the lack of existing infrastructure (such as public water
and sewer utilities, and substandard roads in terms of surface, width, drainage and sight lines).



The Plan recognizes that a healthy 2ist century town is a place where residents can live, shop,
congregate, and spend their time comfortably; a place that is aesthetically pleasing and easy to
navigate for pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles; and a place that offers services and stores that attract
community residents and visitors. As such, the Plan recognizes a need to revitalize the Town's
neighborhoods as more modern, mixed-use communities and establishes policies that will help
support our businesses in a changing economy.

How a New Comprehensive Plan Was Written

In November 2017, when the Town formed the CPUC, a diverse group of 14 volunteers came
together to begin work on a new Plan. A total of 20 residents have worked with the Committee
since that time. Early on, we produced a Website asking for community input. In addition we
organized two town-wide surveys, the first in 2018 and the second in 2020, to continue gathering
community feedback. We had a total of approximately 1,000 responses to our surveys. We also held
two public meetings in late 2018, one in the North Highlands and the other in Continental Village. In
2019, we successfully applied for a Hudson River Greenway grant, which enabled us to gain the

perspective of a professional planner in 2020. Throughout our history as a committee, our volunteers
met individually with as many elected and appointed officials, representatives of Town Departments
and institutional stakeholders as possible. Two members of the Town Board attended our meetings as
ex-officio members and we regularly updated the Town Board about our activities.

How the Comprehensive Plan is Structured

This Plan is founded on the desire for Philipstown to be a sustainable community. Because
sustainability is something that is long lasting and can withstand time, it intrinsically recognizes that
there is a relationship between the social, environmental and economic aspects of the community. The
Committee recognized the interrelationship of the “silos” that were identified in the 2006
Comprehensive Plan. Seeking a unifying structure for the new Plan, the CPUC determined that the
American Planning Association Comprehensive Plan Standards and Best Practices provided the
most complete sustainabllity framework. This framework positions the Comprehensive Plan in a
manner that aligns with Federal, State and regicnal planning objectives.

In addition to presenting goals and strategies, the Plan also identifies the action items that should
be implemented to achieve each of the goals. These action items should be incorporated into the



Town's annual planning and budget process. As part of its budget submission, the Town Board
should receive recommendations associated with the action items outlined in the Plan and be given
the opportunity to review and budget for those specific actions that it deems a priority for
implementation during the following year. Once identified by the Town Board, the prioritized action
items can become part of the Town's work program. It is important to understand that undertaking
actions may lead to additional actions that would be added to this table or may result in the removal
of actions that are currently listed. As such, the actions are the elements of this Plan that will change
more frequently over time and will be revisited in association with the Town’s yearly budget process.

The Comprehensive Plan adopts a multi-disciplinary approach that recognizes the interwoven
complexity of the world in which we live. The Plan’s thirteen Goals embrace the six planning
principles used by the APA. These principles are:

1. Livable Built Environment
Ensure that all elements of the built environment, including land use, transportation, housing, energy,
and infrastructure, work together to provide sustainable, green places for living, working, and
recreation, with a high quality of life.
GOAL 1: SUSTAIN OUR RURAL AND HISTORIC CHARACTER
GOAL 2: PROVIDE A WIDE RANGE OF HOUSING
GOAL 3: DEVELOP AN INTEGRATED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

GOAL 4: EMBRACE “SMART GROWTH" PLANNING PRINCIPLES

2. Harmony with Nature
Ensure that the contributions of natural resources to human well-being are explicitly recognized and
valued and that maintaining their health is a primary objective.
GOAL 5: PROTECT OUR NATURAL RESOURCES

3. Resilient Economy
Ensure that the community is prepared to deal with both positive and negative changes in its
economic health and to initiate sustainable urban development and redevelopment strategies that
foster green business growth and build reliance on local assets.
GOAL 6: SEEK A FAIR AND BALANCED TAX STRATEGY
AL 7: PU E A SUSTAINABLE ECO IC DEVELOPMENT STRAT

GOAL 8: PROMOTE THE CONTINUED USE OF AGRICULTURAL LAND FOR FARMING



4. Healthy Community

Ensure that public health needs are recognized and addressed through provisions for healthy foods,
physical activity, access to recreation, health care, environmental justice and safe neighborhoods.
GOAL 9: STRENGTHEN OUR TOWN-WIDE SENSE OF COMMUNITY
GOAL 10: EXPAND OUR RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES

GOAL 11: ENSURE THAT RESIDENTS CAN ENJOY GOOD HEALTH
5. Responsible Regionalism

Ensure that all local proposals account for, connect with and support the plans of adjacent

jurisdictions and the surrounding region.
GOAL 12: PURSUE PARTNERSHIPS WITH NEIGHBORING MUNICIPALITIES

6. Interwoven Equity

Ensure fairness and equity in providing for the housing, services, health, safety and livelihood needs of
all citizens and groups, and actively discourage discriminatory practices—particularly with regard to
economic development and opportunity, schooling and land use or development.

Applies to all Goals.

GOAL 13: ENSURE THAT THE LAWS OF THE TOWN AND THE GOALS OF THE

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ARE CONSISTENT



Principle I: Livable Built Environment

GOAL 1: SUSTAIN OUR RURAL AND HISTORIC CHARACTER

Preserving our community character in a sustainable way is the overarching theme of
the Comprehensive Plan. Philipstown is a unique place characterized by great natural
beauty, historic places, and a sense of small-town community. This uniqueness is fragile
and could be lost through a rapid influx of development. The existence of open space is
critical to maintaining our unique character. Development should be done in a way that
is sensitive to the Town's special nature. The long term sustainability, resilience, and
safety of the town and health of its residents should be considered in every action

taken.
Strategy . Encourage development in areas designated for future growth.
ACTION ITEMS:

1. Provide incentives for voluntary density reductions.

2. Encourage open space development that promotes connectivity of open spaces and avoids
fragmentation {also known as clustering or conservation development) where appropriate.
Ensure that open space development does not lead to more development than would occur
under conventional development.

3. Require that development is in scale and in character with its surroundings and lot size.

4. Require that new rural roads be compatible with the existing road system. In particular, new
roads off of dirt roads should be in character with the surroundings.

5. Encourage institutional uses that fit the character of the community, and maintain good zoning

control over those uses.



Strategy Il. Preserve elements that contribute to Philipstown’s rural and
historic character — dirt roads; stone walls; historic structures, sites and

areas; significant trees, ridgelines, farmland, and forests; the Hudson River

shoreline and scenic viewsheds.

ACTION ITEMS:

6.

Preserve the character of historic dirt roads. Use techniques and materials in maintaining these
roads that enhance their safety, aesthetics, resilience and regeneration, without adversely
impacting the environment.

Preserve our stone walls, historic structures and large trees, and require consideration of these
in the building permit process.

Conduct a town-wide inventory of historic structures and sites and examine methods for their
continued protection.

Form a town-wide Tree Advisory Committee whose mission would be to educate the residents

of the town on best practices for the maintenance of historic trees.

Strategy Iil. Commit to achieving community carbon neutrality by 2040.

ACTION ITEMS:

10.

1.

12,

13.

Initiate changes to existing regulations that will help achieve community carbon neutrality.
Incorporate recommendations made in the Philipstown 2020 Greenhouse Gas {GHG) Inventory
Report in all policies.

Amend building code to mandate the use of renewable energy for primary heating sources on
new construction or renovations.

Establish sites for electric car charging and mandate car charging stations for new
developments based on the number of parking spaces.



GOAL 2: PROVIDE A WIDE RANGE OF HOUSING

There is a chronic need for a wide range of housing solutions in Philipstown. Our
quality of life relies on affordable housing and access to a diversified economy within
the Town. Residents who work in the community strengthen Philipstown’s small-town
character. This character is threatened by escalating housing costs. Creative solutions
for securing a range of housing that fits the community character for a variety of income
levels should be pursued, and home-based businesses providing a range of services

should be encouraged.

Strategy: Increase the availability of mixed-priced rental and ownership
housing with appropriate controls on their location and impact.

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Encourage the development of Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs), allowed by right, to increase
the stock of smaller-scale housing units.

2. Encourage two-family and three-family housing with appropriate controls on location and
impact.

3. Encourage multi-family housing near mixed-use centers.

4. Encourage a mixture of housing types and require mixed-priced housing in new developments
over a set size threshold.

5. Encourage mixed-use development where housing is mixed with commercial uses.

6. Encourage multi-family housing that serves local needs where a unique opportunity exists to
replace an undesirable use.

7. Explore the incorporation of “co-housing” and “co-living” developments to provide more
housing alternatives.

8. Encourage senior housing that addresses local and regional income levels and needs, and is in
keeping with the scale of Philipstown and the goals of this Plan.

9. Provide incentives and/or requirements for the permanent dedication of units as affordable
housing.

10. Partner with and promote awareness of existing non-profits working to increase affordable
housing in the county and in the region.

10



IR

12,

13.

4.
15.

Incentivize landlords who convert {and maintain) existing rentat units to permanent affordable
housing through state programs.

“Workshop" redevelopment alternatives with large institutional property owners to
pre-approve concepts that are in keeping with the goals of this Plan.

Encourage the rehabilitation of older, seasonal housing units {and related septic and utility
systems), to increase permanent, year-round housing.

Explore policies related to short-term rentals to prevent the loss of a diverse housing stock.
Expand upon the current New York State housing non-discrimination ordinance locally to

cover two-family, owner-occupied housing.

GOAL 3: DEVELOP AN INTEGRATED TRANSPORTATION
PLAN

Philipstown’s transportation plan should embrace the mobility planning principles of its
Complete Streets’ policy and seek to reduce our reliance on motor vehicles.

Strategy: Update the Town's transportation infrastructure to address safety,
health, environmental concerns, traffic congestion and guality of life and

accessibility issues for residents of all ages.

ACTION ITEMS:

1.

Ensure that planning for new roads and the maintenance and repairs of existing roads are
evaluated within the framework of our Complete Streets policy.

2. Support the adoption of a Complete Streets policy for Putnam County.

Create new bike and walking trails and sidewalks that link important community spaces such
as schools, libraries, the Philipstown Recreation Center, Cold Spring and the Garrison Landing.
Ensure that biking and walking options are safe for people of all ages.

! New York State has adopted a Complete Streets policy as have a large number of counties and municipalities
throughout the U.S. According to New York State Climate Smart Communities, ‘complete streets design features
recognize that the needs of users vary according to rural, suburban, and urban contexts and they may include,
but are not limited to, sidewalks, paved shoulders suitable for cycling, lane striping, bike lanes, share-the-road
signage, crosswalks, road diets, pedestrian control signalization, pullouts, curb cuts, raised crosswalks and
ramps, and traffic calming measures. Complete Streets design can include more vegetation to provide shade
and a buffer from traffic, and it can include green infrastructure to better manage stormwater.”

For more information visit https.//climatesmart.nv.gov/actions-certification/actions/(search “Complete Streets Policy")

1



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

Proactively engage with neighboring municipalities to expand public transportation for both
residents and tourists.

Proactively engage with Putnam County and New York State to improve road conditions and
safety on key roadways in Philipstown, reduce motor vehicle fatalities and severe injuries, and
improve pedestrian safety.

Use modern design elements to promote safety (traffic calming, road diets, raised crosswalks,
medians), aesthetics (plantings, medians) and access (curb cuts, safe biking and walking paths)
where possible.

Explore public/private partnership funding options for public transportation..

Form an advisory group to examine transportation to medical appointments and services for
seniors and other residents with mobility restrictions.

Work with Putnam County and New York State to plan for appropriate road improvements
along Route 9D to develop safe, off-road bike paths.

Develop a Phitipstown link to the Greenway Trail and the Northern Putnam Trail.

Maintain the existing horse trail network and consider additional horse trails where
appropriate.

Request and review New York State Department of Transportation traffic studies
post-pandemic, once normal volume resumes, to identify safety issues, especially considering
daily commuter traffic on Route 9 and Route 9D, local use patterns, and issues from curb cuts
for ingress and egress traffic.

Recommend needed upgrades and assess traffic conditions on developable vacant sites that

are zoned for commercial activities.

12



GOAL 4: EMBRACE “SMART GROWTH"” PLANNING
PRINCIPLES

New development should be located only where it can be supported by existing
infrastructure, and new infrastructure should be developed only where it supports the
Town's development and conservation goals. Philipstown should continue to promote
smart growth principles in its land use policies. At the core of the Town’s character is
growth and development that so far has remained within the scale of the community.

Strategy: Direct development to areas where it can be reasonably
supported.

ACTION ITEMS:

1.

Concentrate new commercial and industrial development in designated mixed use or industrial

areas.

2. Locate denser development adjacent to existing areas of settlement.
3. With active local community involvement, study appropriate areas for new mixed use

development, explore use of central sewer and water where appropriate, and consider
developing master plans that balance community character and development potential, while
avoiding landscape fragmentation.

Anticipate redevelopment, adaptive reuse, and mixed income housing opportunities in
discussions with owners of institutional properties, large tracts of land and old industrial sites
and encourage the involvement of open space preservation and land conservation
organizations in these discussions.

Allow denser mixed use development areas that can become community hubs, creating more

pedestrian oriented environments.

13



Principle Il: Harmony With Natur

Planning

GOAL 5: PROTECT OUR NATURAL RESOURCES

The town’s natural resources, which require ongoing protection, are its green
infrastructure and water sources contributing to public health, habitat, recreation, and
community character. As called for in the 2006 Comprehensive Plan, the Town adopted
a Natural Resources Protection Plan (NRPP) in 2007. More recently the Climate Smart
Philipstown Task Force has updated the Natural Resource Inventory (NRI) that formed a
basis for the NRPP. In addition, the Town adopted an updated Open Space Index (OSI) in
2016 to update the maps in the NRPP. With the adoption of the NRPP and the OSI (and
the fact that over half of the town is protected as state park land or by conservation
organizations), Philipstown is in a strong position to protect its natural resources.
However, landscape fragmentation, whereby development patterns create gaps in
open spaces with detrimental consequences for wildlife, continues to pose a threat.

Strategy |. Protect water quality and quantity.

ACTION ITEMS

1. Monitor and protect aquifers, recharge areas and stream corridors.

2. Develop a program for septic system maintenance, remediation and education measures to
minimize risk of surface and groundwater contamination.

3. Protect the quality of our water supply by identifying areas most critical to the water supply
and ensuring that land use practices do not threaten water quality and quantity.

4. Implement best practices for road de-icing in winter to minimize adverse impacts on our water
resources; use less salt.

5. Develop a watershed coalition for Foundry Brook and Clove Creek.

6. Support New York City in its efforts to avoid filtration of Catskill water supply serving
Continental Village.

7. Update Town-wide water resource studies every 5-10 years.

14



Strategy ll. Identify critical parcels of land for preservation.

ACTION ITEMS

8. Continue to implement the recommendations of the NRPP through land use regulations and
other measures.

9. Update the Open Space Index (OSI) every 5-10 years, and add a focus on connectivity of open
spaces.

10. Supplement the OSI with an index of properties critical to key drinking water resources,
namely, the Clove Creek Aquifer and Foundry Brook.

1. Educate residents and commercial owners about protecting the natural resources on their
properties.

12. Provide ongoing training to all town board and volunteer board members on how to protect
natural resources in the development approval process.

13. Create a Community Preservation Project Plan to update the NRPP using the most recent NRI
and OSl and appoint an advisory board to oversee the implementation of this Plan.

14. Explore sustainable sources of funding to carry out the Community Preservation Project Plan.

Strategy lll. Prevent landscape fragmentation.

ACTION ITEMS

15. Preserve habitat and scenic resources.

16. Encourage use of conservation design and clustering.

17. Clarify regulations around open space development and amend conservation subdivision rules
to better protect natural resources.

18. Continue to assess and identify areas that may have high habitat value for biodiversity.

Strategy IV. Facilitate the community's enjoyment of the Hudson River.

ACTION ITEMS

19. Encourage access and use of the riverfront and its tributaries to meet the variety of demands

and needs of the community.
20. Safeguard and enhance the habitat of the river and its tributaries through formation of

watershed coalitions.

15



Strategy V. Protect environmentally sensitive areas identified in the NRPP.

ACTION ITEMS:

21. These areas include: Garrison Golf Club, Cold Spring Reservoir and Foundry Brook, Scofield
Ridge, large contiguous forest blocks (i.e. matrix forest), the Hudson River shoreline,
Constitution Marsh, brooks, wetlands and riparian buffer zone, ridgelines and steep slope,and
corridors between already protected lands.

Strategy VI. Develop strategies to protect against environmentally

hazardous material

ACTION ITEMS

22. Work with other agencies to identify hazardous materials and safeguards against them.
23. Identify sites that may be a source of contaminants into key waterbodies and implement
sampling, testing and mitigation protocols through the watershed coalitions.

Strategy VIi. Encourage sustainable commercial and residential
construction practices.

ACTION ITEMS;

24, These practices include; water conservation, recycling programs, renewable energy
applications, incorporation of materials with longer life versus use of biodegradable materials,
efficient use of lighting, reduction of impervious surface area, adoption of new waste
treatment methods to reduce the impact of current septic requirements on the landscape.

16



Principle lll: Resilient Economy

GOAL 6: SEEK A FAIR AND BALANCED TAX STRATEGY

The Town should continue to look for opportunities to increase tax revenues, explore
shared services, and address the variability of school taxes among the residents of the
Town. Our taxes are lower than neighboring municipalities in the Lower Hudson Valley.
Maintaining these rates is helpful in retaining current taxpayers and attracting new

residents and businesses to Philipstown.

The issue of development versus land preservation, and the impact of each on property
taxes and municipal services costs, is an area of concern. However, there is strong
consensus that to make decisions based on fiscal impact alone will result in plans that
dilute the special character that is the town'’s core value.

The school tax situation is complex. Philipstown residents are currently located in one of
four school districts. Tax rates vary significantly between the districts; the end result is
that taxpayers with equal assessments who live in different school districts within
Philipstown have total property tax bills that vary a great deal.

Strategy l. Increase local tax revenues.

ACTION ITEMS

1. Maximize tax revenues by attracting commercial development in locations with suitable
infrastructure. Retaining Philipstown’s unique character should be considered in all

conversations about potential new development.
2. Weigh the benefit of potential development for increasing the Town's tax base against the cost

of providing additional services to new homes and businesses.

17



Strategy Il. Explore shared services.

ACTION ITEMS

3. Reduce the cost of providing municipal services through budget cuts achieved by
implementing efficiencies and exploring shared service opportunities with neighboring
municipalities.

4. Explore the formation of districts and/or privatization as a potential means for delivering
services to residents and maintaining public facilities in a cost-effective manner.

Strategy Ill. Address the variability of school taxes.

ACTION ITEMS

5. Encourage the formation of a citizen task force to examine school tax issves, including
reassessment strategies and state-level initiatives. The latter could include, for example,
creating an additional level of STAR, which reimburses residents who pay significantly higher
taxes than the rest of the town.

6. Recommend that the elected officials of the Town, Villages and School Districts and any other
taxing entities meet to discuss shared concerns and needs, including discussions about
innovative ways to cross traditional boundary lines to deliver improved services so that all
Philipstown students—regardless of the district in which they reside—are able to access and
benefit from the educational and recreational opportunities that fit their skills, abilities and
interests.

18



GOAL 7: PURSUE A SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Identify the type and location of commercial activity that is desirable in Philipstown and

partner with New York State and neighboring municipalities to improve the safety of

this activity. Philipstown's existing businesses provide a range of products, services and

employment to the town and region. They also play a major role in shaping our special

small-town character.

New commercial development should be consistent with the town's aesthetic and
qualitative goals, while contributing to a strong economy. In addition, technology is
creating a new group of workers who can work and tele-commute from their homes.
Developing specific guidelines for managing connectivity infrastructure will make it
easier for appropriate businesses and home offices to locate in Philipstown.

Strategy |. Attract commercial activity that is consistent with Town values.

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Attract desirable new businesses.

2. Encourage home-based businesses consistent with the zoning code, provide safe parking for
employees or clients, and assess the impact on adjacent properties.

3. Recognize the importance of nonprofits and religious organizations because of their affinity
with the town and their contributions to the town's quality of life.

4. Discourage national franchises. Encourage experienced regional business owners with a
limited number of other locations wishing to expand into Philipstown.

Strat Il. Accommodate commercial activity in desighated areas.

5. Locate commercial activity in locations that complement the town's traffic patterns, community

interests and design guidelines.
6. Concentrate retail development at high traffic hubs and in numbers that can be supported by

local demand.

19



7. Discourage “big box” architecture and strip commercial development.
8. Encourage hamlet-type development that provides opportunities for local businesses to tocate
near each other.

Strateqy lll. Develop spaces for growing small and medium-siz

businesses.

ACTION ITEMS:

9. Create small-scale mixed-use village-type centers where local businesses can locate and
thrive.

10. Encourage development of professional office/commercial space, in keeping with the scale of
Philipstown and the goals of this plan, to decrease commuting time for local workers, and
stimulate the day-time economy in Philipstown.

trateqy IV rove the ¢ cter of development on Route 9

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Focus on managing safety egress and ingress at mixed-use hubs such as Philipstown Square
area or other appropriate locations.

12. Improve traffic light and safety at the intersection of Route 9 and Fishkill Road, as well as
Route 9 and Snake Hill Road.

13. Adopt further design guidelines for signage and site improvements.

14. Provide adequate buffers between commercial and residential districts.

15. Apply aquifer protection guidelines and remove invasive species.

16. Prohibit noisy and obtrusive uses.

17. Prohibit additional soil mining.

18. Encourage the maintenance and landscaping of unoccupied or abandoned structures.

20



GOAL 8: PROMOTE THE CONTINUED USE OF
AGRICULTURAL LAND FOR FARMING

Farming has been an important part of Philipstown’s history and we are fortunate to
have Glynwood, a teading institution in farming development and education,
headquartered here, The Town should promote the conservation of local food systems

and the development of additional food systems.

Strateqy: Support agriculture in Philipstown.

ACTION ITEMS:

Create an inventory of all current "agricultural’ ventures, large and small.

Educate the community about the preservation of open spaces as fields rather than lawns.
Promote the incorporation of “food forests” into land management plans.

Encourage small-scale food production and educate the residents about good farming

powoN

practices.
5. Provide a Town-wide compost area and educate the residents on using it.

21



Planning Principle IV: Healthy Communit

GOAL 9: STRENGTHEN OUR TOWN-WIDE SENSE OF
COMMUNITY

Philipstown’s communities are separated by our mountainous geography and municipal
boundaries, which can isolate residents from each other. A Philipstown in which people
can connect with each other will be a stronger, healthier Philipstown.

Strategy: Enable people to connect with one another so that Philipstown

retains its small-town character and tradition of volunteerism.

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Enhance the Town's website and add streaming capability to the meetings of the Town's
various Boards.

2. Provide improved Town Hall and Community Center facilities (youth, senior, administrative,
recreation) that will help bring together residents from various parts of the Town.

3. Explore further cooperation among school districts and/or the possibility of creating a unified
Philipstown school district that serves residents in Garrison, Cold Spring, Nelsonville, North
Highlands, and Continental Village.

4. Encourage the provision of additional health care facilities.

5. Enhance the use of the Town’s television channel to share programs and information.

6. Maintain the volunteer fire and ambulance corps, and explore further cooperation between the
emergency services, considering manpower needs.

7. Support several town-wide events each year and maintain a town-wide calendar of events.

8. Support the public libraries in Philipstown as they provide foundational programs and services
that support the high quality of life we enjoy. Encourage them to serve as a citizens' forum to
sponsor programs, discussion and education.

9. Actively promote and support diversity, making it a primary consideration when appointing
members to newly vacant Board positions. Simultaneously, actively discourage appointed and
elected officials from enacting policies and decisions that directly or indirectly discriminate
against business owners and residents of any race, creed, color or religion.

22



GOAL 10: EXPAND OUR RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES

Expand the Town’s capacity to meet current and future demand for recreation, while
providing a wide range of activities serving all ages at an affordable cost. Recreation
pulls different segments of the community together and encourages people of all ages
to improve their health and well-being.

Strategy |. Offer a wide variety of Recreation Department programs.

ACTION ITEMS:

1.

Educate the public about Town recreational offerings and the offerings of other local
recreation providers.
Create more specialty programming that is tailored to the needs of particular groups such as
teens and senior citizens.
Develop and implement a cooperative recreation plan with all interested parties, linking it to
other Town programs and regulations.
a. identify opportunities to develop partnerships with schools to increase youth physical
activity and encourage use of other facilities owned by schools and nonprofits
b. encourage the use of facilities owned by schools and nonprofits to increase
opportunities for physical activity and recreation across all age groups
Explore opportunities to develop expanded recreational activities through municipal, private,
and non-profit development projects.
Explore the full range of options for funding recreational properties and improve the Town's
ability to apply for grant funding for recreational programming and infrastructure.
Identify possible sites for new Town recreational facilities that could also serve as a focal point
for the community. Residents have indicated a strong interest in a swimming pool and a
synthetic surfaced athletic field with lights.

23



Strategy Il. Consider designating land for hunting.

ACTION ITEMS

7. Consider lands for hunting (as lands are preserved keep in mind that New York State’s
Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) manages lands more actively for hunting
than New York State's Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation).

Strateqy lll. Facilitate visual and physical access to the Hudson River.

ACTION ITEMS

8. Improve riverfront and tributary access. Riverfront plans should be developed closely between
the Village of Cold Spring, Philipstown, Putnam County and all other stakeholders.

9. Support the Fjord Trail Project and remain engaged in discussions around Fjord Trail mapping,
design and implementation. Consider hiring a planning consultant to represent the Village and
the Town in these discussions. Create connections from the Fjord Trail to key Village and Town
locations and ensure that there is adequate parking. Increase the number of public restrooms.

GOAL 11: ENSURE THAT RESIDENTS ENJOY GOOD HEALTH

A 2017 New York State directive calls on Philipstown to embrace a “health across all
policies” initiative, which calls for “incorporating health considerations into policies,
programs and initiatives Led by non-health agencies.” Our health is shaped by the
community in which we live. In the past, health concerns were not explicitly integrated

into the planning process.

Strategy l. Recognize the health needs of specific age groups.

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Promote supportive environments for parents with infants and young children by expanding
access to high quality parent support and early learning opportunities.

24



Collaborate with school districts and community organizations to support positive youth
development by providing a wide range of recreational, enrichment and skill-building
programs for youth at low or no cost.

Use zoning restrictions and other approaches to restrict youth access to tobacco, e-cigs/vape
products, alcohol, and associated advertising (e.g. Town could prohibit tobacco advertising or
sales within a certain radius of schools); adopt a smoke-free air law for Philipstown that
includes vape products, prohibiting smoking in parks, playgrounds, and on town buildings and
grounds.

Collaborate with other government and social service agencies to prevent youth access to
illegal drugs and continue to support the efforts of the Philipstown Behavioral Health Hub.
Address the needs of seniors across multiple domains including housing, transportation, social
inclusion, and social and health services.

Strategy Il. Promote active lifestyles.

ACTION ITEMS:

6. Ensure that parks and recreational spaces address needs across all age groups.

0 @ N

Support the development of biking and walking paths as a way to promote physical activity.
Support access to affordable recreational activities for residents of all ages.
Explore partnerships with school districts to allow access to district recreation facilities for low

or no cost.

trategy lll. S ort healthy foods and prevent food insecurity.

ACTION ITEMS:

10.

1.

12.

Support access to affordable healthy foods by supporting and devetoping “local food
systems.”

Support community garden concepts.

Work with community-based agencies to prevent food insecurity/hunger.

Strategy IV. Promote environmental heatth.

ACTION ITEMS:

13.

Support initiatives that reduce air pollution (non-motorized transport, public transport and
solar energy).

25



14. Develop and implement strategies to reduce solid waste disposal including incentivizing
recycling and composting.

15. Preserve and protect drinking water resources. Protect surface and groundwater from overuse
of salt on roadways by exploring more environmentally friendly options. Limit use of
pesticides on roadways and near waterways where possible. Use biopesticides/non-toxic
pesticides.

16. Plan for public health issues associated with climate change including increasing frequency
and intensity of natural disasters such as hurricanes, severe snow/ice storms, flooding and
extreme heat events; in particular plan for needs of sensitive populations including infants and
the elderly (for example, providing and publicizing cooling centers during extreme heat

events.)

Strategy V. Provide access to healthcare and social services.

ACTION ITEMS:

17. Promote improved access to health, mental health and social services for residents of all ages.
18. Partner with local, state and federal agencies to prevent drug and alcohol use and abuse.

26



GOAL 12. PURSUE PARTNERSHIPS WITH NEIGHBORING
MUNICIPALITIES

A policy of responsible regionalism can foster cooperation in the management of the
increasing number of visitors to Philipstown and provide guidance on climate change
mitigation, connectivity and technology issues. Phitipstown'’s recreation opportunities,
attractive restaurants, local businesses, and arts and cultural institutions attract visitors
and generate income for our local retail and hospitality service providers. The number of
visitors to Philipstown has increased exponentially in recent years. Visitor management,
a complicated issue involving several New York State agencies, local governments, and
other private and public entities--some of which have conflicting missions and limited

resources--has become a planning priority.

Strategy [. Ensure that tourism and tourism-related businesses do not
threaten the character of the town.

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Encourage cooperation between all municipalities and institutions involved.
2. Limit parking at points of interest within the Town's jurisdiction.
3. Educate the public about the use of outdoor attractions.

Strategy Il. Form a Regional Advisory Committee to provide guidance to the
Town on issues such as climate change mitigation, connectivity and
technology.

ACTION ITEMS:

4. Form a Committee Including residents of Philipstown and other towns in Putnam County, as
well as representatives from other communities in the Mid Hudson region.

27



5. Address future connectivity issues such as improved fiber-optics, cell tower locations and
appearances, and the introduction of 5G technology.
Address climate change mitigation and future power generation requirements.

7. Address the impact, management and integration of technological innovation in our daily

lives.

Principle VI: Interwoven Equit

Note: The principle of interwoven equity applies to all thirteen goals of this plan.

GOAL 13: ENSURE THAT THE LAWS OF THE TOWN AND THE
GOALS OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ARE CONSISTENT

Update Philipstown’s laws to ensure that they are consistent with the goals of
the Comprehensive Plan. The laws of Philipstown should be consistent with the
town’s goals and clear enough that supporters of development find it easy to navigate

the planning process.

Strategy I: Create consistency and harmony between our Town's laws and
the Comprehensive Plan.

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Enforce existing regulations.

2. Provide the best available technology to all those who are involved in the planning process.

3. Update the zoning code to ensure that it is consistent with the goals of the Comprehensive
Plan, understandable, and easy to administer.

4. Review environmental, architectural and sanitary standards as they apply to Manitou, Lake
Vathalla, and Continental Village, and other places where non-conforming lots create special

circumstances.

28



Strategy li: Maintain a standing committee to oversee the implementation
of the action items outlined in the Comprehensive Plan.

ACTION ITEMS:

5. Conduct periodic planning “charrettes” with public input, to address new challenges and
opportunities as they arise.
6. Conduct annual reviews to select action items for priority in the next year.

29



121112020 Image_00180.jpg

Town of Philipstown
Code Eufirvement Office
238 Mala Bireet, PO Box 1558
Cold Sprisg, NY 10516

Ciffics (B45) 265- S202  Fax (845} 2652647

MONTHLY REPORT for NOvemker 20 20

1. Fees Collested d25924.25
2. Tolal Mumber of Permits Issued 31
3. New One- or Tro-lamily dwellings: =1 Lwg
4. New Commerclalindustrial buidings: 2
5. New Hazardous (H) occupancles; =l
8. New Mult family oocupancias: =
7. Addilions, aliarations of repalrs residential butioings m’____
B. Addiions, alterations o repars commercial buiidings. Lo
8. Allother permits (zools, sheds, decks, plumbing, HVAC, elc.) =i
10. Nusbsr of Certiicates of Oczupancy : 1
11. Number of Stop Work Orderm issued:

|
12. Operating permils issued i
13. Operating permits Issued hazardous materiais =5
14. Operaling permils Hazardous processes and achvites S AL
15. Permits Issued for the Use of pyrotechnic dhvices: i
16. inspsciion of public assembly - =28
17. Inspaction of commerciel occupanties E
18. inspention of buldings with 3 or more dwelling unis: .

Projecis of Significance: ___

e e = — S

https://mait.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2#inboxWhetKJWJFbFhXkwgQwQd THhXMJkSvRgjzg g ANCwwixGRImndgJrvVpWQHIGXTdCKsPmVski?project... 111



